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BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED
(CIN: U55101BR1964PLC000737)
Registered Office: South Gandhi Maidan, Patna 800 001
Phone: 0612-2203040, Fax: 0612-2203060
Email: maurya@maurya.com Website: www.maurya.com

To,
All Members, Directors and Auditors,
Bihar Hotels Limited.

NOTICE is hereby given that 59' (Fifty-ninth) Annual General Meeting of the
Members of Bihar Hotels Limited will be held on Friday the 29" day of September,
2023 at 03:00 P.M. at registered office of the company situated at: Hotel Maurya,
South Gandhi Maidan, Patna-800001, Bihar to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To consider and adopt (a) the audited standalone financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31% March, 2023 and the reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and (b) the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March, 2023 and to
consider and if thought fit, pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for
the financial year ended 315 March, 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are hereby considered and
adopted.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts and deeds as may be necessary to give effect to the
aforesaid resolution.”

“RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the financial year ended 31% March, 2023 and the report of Auditors thereon laid
before this meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts and deeds as may be necessary to give effect to the
aforesaid resolution.”
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2. To declare dividend for the F.Y. 2022-23 and to consider and if thought fit, pass
with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 123 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification/s
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), dividend at the rate 15%
amounting to Re. 00.30 (Thirty Paise) per equity share of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two) each
fully paid-up of the Company be and is hereby declared for the financial year ended
315 March, 2023 and the same be paid as recommended by the Board of Directors of

the Company to the members whose name appears in the Register of Members as at
the date of Annual General Meeting.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts and deeds as may be necessary to give effect to the
aforesaid resolution.”

3. To re-appoint Mr. Shashi Bhushan Prasad (DIN: 03596446) as Non-Executive
Director of the Company who is retiring by rotation and who, being eligible, has
offered himself for re-appointment and to consider and if thought fit, pass with or
without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification/s
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), letter of willingness received
from him and upon recommendation made by Board of Directors through its 277t
meeting held on 22.08.2023, Mr. Shashi Bhushan Prasad (DIN: 03596446) who is
retiring by rotation at this meeting, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Non-
Executive Director of the Company whose terms of office shall be liable to retire by
rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts and deeds as may be necessary to give effect to the
aforesaid resolution.”
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:

. To appoint Mrs. Ratika Sinha (DIN: 00355032) as Non-Executive Director of the
Company and to consider and if thought fit, pass with or without modification(s),
the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 160 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any
statutory modification/s or re-enactment/s thereof for the time being in force), and
on recommendation made by Board of Directors of the Company through its 277t
Board Meeting held on 22.08.2023, approval of shareholders of the Company be and
is hereby given to appoint Mrs. Ratika Sinha (DIN: 00355032) as Non-Executive
Director of the Company w.e.f. 01.10.2023.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do

all such acts, deeds and things as may be required to give effect to the above said
resolution.”

. To approve the payment of managerial remuneration to the Managing Director
and Whole-time Director in excess of 10% of net profits of the Company, for the
F.Y. 2023-24 and to consider and if thought fit, pass with or without
modification(s), the following resolutions as Special Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and on recommendation made
by Board of Directors of the Company at its 277" Board Meeting held on 22.08.2023,
approval of shareholders of the Company be and is hereby given for payment of
managerial remuneration of F.Y. 2023-24 in excess of 10% (Ten percent) of net
profits of the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do
all such acts, deeds and things as may be required to give effect to the above said
resolution.”



GD BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED

6. To approve the payment of managerial remuneration of F.Y. 2023-24 in excess of
11% (Eleven Per cent) of net profit and limit specified under Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 and to consider and if thought fit, pass with or without
modification(s), the following resolutions as Special Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and on recommendation made
by Board of Directors of the Company at its 277" Board Meeting held on 22.08.2023,
approval of shareholders of the Company be and is hereby given for payment of
managerial remuneration of F.Y. 2023-24 in excess of 11% (Eleven Per cent) of net

profits of the Company and limit specified under Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do
all such acts, deeds and things as may be required to give effect to the above said
resolution.”

By the order of the Board of Directors
For: Bihar Hotels Limited

/‘\_/

¢
Aditya Prakash Sinha
(Managing Director)
DIN: 00089558
Contact No.: 0612-2203040
Email id: maurya@maurya.com
Date: 05" September,2023.
Place: Patna



(lb BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES:

. A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote in the meeting instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be
a member.

The instrument appointing the proxy, duly completed, stamped and signed, must be
deposited at the Company’s registered office not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting. The proxy form for the AGM is enclosed herewith.

. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in
respect to Special Business set out in the Notice is annexed.

Corporate members intending to send their authorised representative(s) to attend
the Meeting are requested to send to the Company’s registered office a certified
true copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with the specimen signature(s)
of the representative(s) authorised under the said Board Resolution to attend and
vote on their behalf at the Meeting not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting.

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for commencement of
the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be
entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at anytime during the business hours of the
company.

Members/Proxies/Authorised Representatives are requested to bring to the Meeting
necessary details of their shareholding, attendance slip(s) and copy(ies) of their
Annual Report.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in
the order of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

Relevant documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection by the
members at the registered office of the Company on all working days (that is, except
Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) during business hours up to the date of the
Meeting. The aforesaid documents will also be available for inspection by members
at the Meeting.

Copies of Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company along with reports thereon and Financial Statements of Subsidiary
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Company along with reports thereon are enclosed along with this notice and marked
together as Annexure-A.

The Company’s Registrars & Transfer Agents for its share registry (both, physical as
well as electronic) is CB Management Services Private Limited having its office at: P-
22, Bondel Road, Kolkata-700019, West Bengal.

Members holding shares in electronic mode may note that bank particulars
registered against their respective depository accounts will be used by the Company
for payment of dividend. The Company or CB Management Services Private Limited
cannot act on any request received directly from the members holding shares in
electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes
are to be advised only to the Depository Participant (DP) by the members.

Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change in
their address or bank mandates to their DPs with whom they are maintaining their
demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to advise
any change in their address or bank mandates to the Company / CB Management
Services Private Limited.

A route map for easy location of venue of the meeting is enclosed herewith.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 (1) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The following explanatory statement sets out the material facts relating to the
special business mentioned in the accompanying notice dated 05" September,2023.

Item No. 4:

In order to broaden the management base of the Company, it is desirous to appoint
Mrs. Ratika Sinha (DIN: 00355032) as Non-Executive Director of the Company. She
has a Master's degree in Hotel Administration from the famed Lausanne Hotel
School (Switzerland). At George Mason University, Fairfax, USA, where she obtained
her Bachelor of Science degree in Business Management, her area of
concentration/focused studies was Tourism. Under her leadership and because she
is a certified sustainability practitioner, the company, M/s Svasara Resorts Private
Limited (the wholly-owned subsidiary of Bihar Hotels Limited) remains one of the
most inspirational eco-lodges in the country, and has been awarded the Outstanding
TOFT (Tour Operators for Tigers) Sustainability Certification. In addition, the resort
owned by the company also has won numerous awards for outstanding customer
service / Certificate of Excellence by forums like TripAdvisor etc.

She was also associated with Bihar Hotels Limited as Wholetime Director from
23.05.2015 to 09.02.2018. She resigned from directorship of the Company due to
her other professional commitments. But now on request of Board of Directors of
the Company, she has given her consent to act as a Non-Executive Director.

The aforesaid matter has been taken up by the Board of Directors at its 277"
meeting held on 22.08.2023. Board of directors accordingly recommends the
proposed Ordinary Resolution to the members of the Company for their
consideration and approval.

All the relevant documents are being placed at the registered office of the Company
for inspection from 10.00 A.M. to 02.00 P.M. on any working day up to the date of
Annual General Meeting.

None of the Director, key managerial personnel or their relatives, except to the
extent of their shareholding, is in any way, concerned or interested in the resolution.
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ltem No. 5:

Clause (i) of Second Proviso to Sub-section 1 of Section 197 of the Companies Act,
2013 provides that except with the approval of the company in general meeting by a
special resolution, the remuneration payable to any one managing director; or
whole-time director or manager shall not exceed five percent of the net profits of
the company and if there is more than one such director remuneration shall not
exceed ten percent of the net profits to all such Directors and manager taken
together.

On the basis of past trend of profits made and actuals for F.Y. 2023-24 till now, it can
be foreseen that managerial remuneration to be paid for the F.Y. 2023-24 to the
Managing Director and Whole-time Director may exceed the aforesaid prescribed
limit for F.Y. 2023-24.

The aforesaid matter has been taken up by the Board of Directors at its 277th
meeting held on 22.08.2023. Board of directors accordingly recommends the

proposed special resolution to the members of the Company for their consideration
and approval.

All the relevant documents are being placed at the registered office of the Company
for inspection from 10.00 A.M. to 02.00 P.M. on any working day up to the date of
Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Aditya Prakash Sinha, Managing Director and Mr. Banshidhar Singh, Whole-time
Director of the Company may be deemed to be interested in the aforesaid resolution
by virtue of holding directorship of the Company and receiving remuneration in lieu
of same. Further, Mrs. Renuka Sinha (Mother of Mr. Aditya Prakash Singh), Mrs.
Richa Sinha (Wife of Mr. Aditya Prakash Sinha) and Mr. Pranaya Prakash Sinha (Son
of Mr. Aditya Prakash Sinha), Shareholders of the Company may be deemed to be
interested in the aforesaid resolution being relatives.

item No. 6!

Sub-section 1 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the total
managerial remuneration payable by a public company, to its directors, including
managing director and whole-time director, and its manager in respect of any
financial year shall not exceed eleven per cent of the net profits of that company for
that financial year computed in the manner laid down in section 198 except that the
remuneration of the directors shall not be deducted from the gross profits.
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On the basis of past trend of profits made and actuals for F.Y. 2023-24 till now, it can
be foreseen that managerial remuneration for F.Y. 2023-24 may exceed the limit
prescribed under Sub-Section 1 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013.

First proviso to Sub-Section 1 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 states that
that the company in general meeting may authorise the payment of remuneration
exceeding eleven per cent of the net profits of the company, subject to the
provisions of Schedule V. Though as per provisions of Schedule V, the Company is
eligible for payment of managerial remuneration upto Rs. 84.00 Lacs based on its
effective capital, however total remuneration payable to all directors in F.Y. 2023-24
is expected to exceed 11% of the net profit and limit specified under Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013, as such the Company is required to obtain approval for the
same in general meeting.

The aforesaid matter has been taken up by the Board of Directors at its 277"
meeting held on 23.08.2023. Board of directors accordingly recommends the
proposed special resolution to the members of the Company for their consideration
and approval.

All the relevant documents are being placed at the registered office of the Company
for inspection from 10.00 A.M. to 02.00 P.M. on any working day up to the date of
Annual General Meeting.

All existing directors of the Company may be deemed to be interested in the
aforesaid resolution by virtue of holding directorship of the Company. Further, Mrs.
Renuka Sinha (Mother of Mr. Aditya Prakash Singh), Mrs. Richa Sinha (Wife of Mr.
Aditya Prakash Sinha) and Mr. Pranaya Prakash Sinha (Son of Mr. Aditya Prakash
Sinha), Shareholders of the Company may be deemed to be interested in the
aforesaid resolution being relatives.

By the order of the Board of Directors
For: Bihar Hotels Limited

Aditya Prakash Sinha
(Managing Director)

DIN: 00089558

Contact No.: 0612-2203040
Email id: maurya@maurya.com
Date: 05" September,2023.
Place: Patna



GD BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U55101BR1964PLC000737
Name of the company: Bihar Hotels Limited
Registered office: South Gandhi Maidan, Patna-800001, Bihar.

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail ID:

Folio No.

I/We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named company, hereby
appoint

1. Name: ...i.......

Address :

E-mail Id :

Signature :................, or failing him

20 NAMB S isvmissonsssanesassasas

Address:

E-mail Id :

Signature:................, or failing him

3-Name caaaicannas
Address:

E-mail Id:
Signature:......ccouue.

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at
the 59t Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday the 29*" day
of September, 2023 at 03:00 P.M. at registered office of the company situated at:
Hotel Maurya, South Gandhi Maidan, Patna-800001, Bihar, and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
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Resolution
No.

Resolution

Vote (optional see Note 2)
(Please mention no. of
shares)

For Against | Abstain

To consider and adopt (a) the audited
standalone financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31%
March, 2023 and the reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon; and (b) the
audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the financial year ended
31t March, 2023.

To declare dividend for the F.Y. 2022-23.

To re-appoint Mr. Shashi Bhushan Prasad
(DIN: 03596446) as Non-Executive Director
of the Company who is retiring by rotation
and who, being eligible, has offered himself
for re-appointment.

To appoint Mrs. Ratika Sinha (DIN:
00355032) as Non-Executive Director of the
Company.

To approve the payment of managerial
remuneration to the Managing Director and
Whole-time Director in excess of 10% of net
profits of the Company for the F.Y. 2023-24.

To approve the payment of managerial
remuneration of F.Y. 2023-24 in excess of
11% (Eleven Per cent) of net profit and limit
specified under Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013.

-11-
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Stamp

Signed this...... day of......... 2023

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note:

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly stamped, completed,
signed and deposited at the registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours
before the commencement of the meeting.

It is optional to indicate your preference, if you leave the “for, against or abstain”
column blank against the resolution, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the
manner as he / she may deem appropriate.

42
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

59" Annual General Meeting of Bihar Hotels Limited held on Friday the 29t" day of
September, 2023 at 03:00 P.M. at registered office of the company situated at: Hotel
Maurya, South Gandhi Maidan, Patna-800001, Bihar.

Registered Folio No.:

Name of the *member/proxy:

Number of shares held:

| certify that | am a *member/proxy for the member of the Company.

| hereby record my presence at the 59" Annual General Meeting of Bihar Hotels
Limited held on Friday the 29" day of September, 2023 at 03:00 P.M. at registered
office of the company situated at: Hotel Maurya, South Gandhi Maidan, Patna-
800001, Bihar.

Signature of the *member/proxy

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting
hall. Members are requested to bring their copies of the Notice to the AGM.

*Strike-off whichever is not applicable

=13=
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BOARD REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23

To,
The Members,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 59* (Fifty-ninth) Board Report on
the business and operations of the company together with the Audited Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 31t March, 2023.

Financial Highlights

During the year under review, performance of your company is as under:

(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31%* March, 2023 | 315t March, 2022
Revenue from operation 4491.98 2763.51
Other Income 134.30 74.60
Total Revenue 4626.28 2838.11
Less: Expenses 4059.18 2829.61
Profit/(Loss) before Extraordinary Items 567.10 8.50
and Taxes
Less: Extraordinary Items 0.00 0.00
Profit/{Loss) before tax 567.10 8.50
Less: Tax Expenses (Deferred Tax) 139.77 (25.16)
Profit/Loss for the year 427.33 33.66
State of Company’s Affairs

The Company is engaged in hotel business through its unit Hotel Maurya which is
situated at South Gandhi Maidan, Patna, Bihar. The Company is maintaining its
website www.maurya.com which provides along with other details, amenities and
services provided by the hotel.

The nationwide lockdown due to COVID-19 pandemic had grossly impacted the
business of the Company. The lockdown continued during the first quarter of the F.Y.
2021-22 but in spite of the same, post withdrawal of the lockdown, the Company re-
gained its market and with consistent efforts increased its revenue by 61.43% in the
F.Y. 2021-22 as compared to the previous year (2020-21). This was driven by
recovery in the hospitality industry. For the F.Y. 2022-23, the Company's turnover
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marked a considerable increase of 62.55%. Further, during the year under review the
Company earned an after-tax profit of Rs. 427.33 Lacs in comparison of Rs. 33.66
Lacs during the previous year. Also, Return on Equity Ratio for the F.Y. 2022-23
increased from 1.67% to 19.21%.

The Company is operating its unit Hotel Maurya at the leased premises situated at
South Gandhi Maidan, Patna. The 49 (forty-nine) years lease period which
commenced on 25th day of May, 1973 expired on 24™ day of May, 2022. The
Company had already applied for necessary renewal of the Lease Agreement and the
same has now been granted to the Company. The lease has been renewed w.e.f. 25t
May, 2022 for a further term of 49 (forty-nine) years. The Company is committed to
provide best amenities and services by adopting and upgrading to best quality
standards in hotel industry.

The Company is planning for infrastructural and operational expansion within the
existing premises.

Operations and Business Performance of Subsidiary Company:

M/s Svasara Resorts Private Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
The subsidiary Company runs a resort in Chandrapur District of the state of
Maharashtra. There has been no change in the nature of business of the Subsidiary
Company during the year under review. Performance of the wholly-owned subsidiary
company is as under:

(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

315t March, 2023 31t March, 2022
Revenue from operation 461.59 246.27
Other Income 2.03 0.66
Total Revenue 463.62 246.93
Less: Expenses 406.98 276.64
Profit/(Loss) before tax 56.64 (29.71)
Less: Tax Expenses 9.89 1.87
Profit/(Loss) for the year 46.75 (31.58)

For the F.Y. 2022-23, the Company's turnover marked a considerable increase of
87.43%. Further, during the year under review the Company earned an after-tax
profit of Rs. 46.75 Lacs in comparison of loss of Rs. 31.58 Lacs during the previous
year.
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing
salient features of the financial statements of the Company’s Subsidiary Company in
Form AOC-1 is enclosed with the Financial Statements.

Web link of Annual Return
The Company is maintaining website www.maurya.com and annual return of the

Company shall be uploaded on such website. Link for the same is as below:
http://www.maurya.com/financial reporting/

Amount Transferred to Reserves

No amount has been transferred to General Reserve from Profit & Loss Account of
the Company for financial year ended 31.03.2023. However, a sum of Rs. 05.01 Lacs
has been transferred to General Reserve from Revaluation Reserve.

Dividend

Board of Directors is pleased to recommend a final dividend @ 15% i.e. Rs. 00.30
(Thirty Paise) per equity share. Final dividend, if approved in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting will be paid to the members, whose name appears in the Register
of Members as maintained with the Registrar & Transfer Agents of the Company at
the date of Annual General Meeting, within the period stipulated under the
Companies Act, 2013.

VIl. Change in the nature of business

Viil.

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year
under review.

Number of Board Meetings
During the year under review meetings of the Board were held at regular intervals.

The Board of Directors met 4 (four) times during the F.Y. 2022-23. Board meetings
were held on 12.07.2022, 23.08.2022, 20.12.2022 and 01.03.2023.
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IX. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments under Section 186

During the year under review, the Company had granted unsecured loan to M/s
Vivid Colors Private Limited amounting to Rs. 3.38 Crore with approval of Board of
Directors and in due compliance of the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The Company did not provide any guarantee or made any investment under Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

However, the Company has made an investment of Rs. 2,79,98,600/- (Rupees Two
Crore Seventy-nine Lacs Ninety-eight Thousand and Six Hundred only) in Mutual

Funds. Your directors expect healthy return from such investment.

X. Deposits

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under
review.

Xl. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties
Details of material transactions with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 is enclosed herewith in Form AOC-2 as

Annexure-A.

Xl

. Explanation to qualification, reservation or adverse remarks made by the statutory
auditors in their report:
S.No.1

Auditor's Qualification:

Magadh Stock Exchange [MSE], where company’s securities were listed earlier, has
been derecognized by Securities Exchange Board of India [SEBI] effective September
19, 2007. SEBI, vide Circular No. 36/2008 dated December 29, 2008 mandated the
companies which are listed exclusively on those de-recognized stock exchanges to
either seek listing at other stock exchanges or provide an exit option to the
Shareholders as per SEBI Delisting Guidelines/Regulations after obtaining
shareholders’ approval for the same, within a time frame, to be specified by SEBI,
failing which the Company shall stand delisted through operation of law. SEBI, in
response to informal guidance sought by the Company, vide its letter dated May 4,
2010 informed the company that in view of the Company not being listed in any
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other stock exchange other than MSE, which has been derecognized, the Company
may not be considered as a listed Company and accordingly advised the Company to
either seek listing at other stock exchanges or provide an exit option to its
shareholders. The shareholders in its annual general meeting held on 30th
September 2010 authorized the Company to seek listing in any one or more
recognized stock exchanges in India including the stock exchange having nation-
wide terminals wherever applicable. The company has not yet initiated any action
towards listing and pending such listing, the Company has been considered as
unlisted company. The Registrar of Companies Patna suo motto changed the status
of company from listed company to unlisted company and allotted the revised
Company Identification Number on the basis of company being unlisted. Any
consequential impact of inaction in regard to listing/de-listing of the shares has not
been ascertained and provided for.

Our Submission:

The Company’s securities were earlier listed at Magadh Stock Exchange. However,
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) refused to renew the recognition
granted to Magadh Stock Exchange Limited (MdhSEL) vide SEBI order SEBI/LE/
102396 /2007 dated August 30, 2007.

Thereafter, SEBI vide Circular No. MRD/DoP/SE/Cir-36/2008 dated December 29,
2008, issued guidelines laying down the framework for exit by stock exchanges
whose recognition is withdrawn and/or renewal of recognition is refused by SEBI
and for the Regional Stock Exchanges (“RSEs”) which may want to surrender their
recognition. On 08th May, 2019 vide Circular No.- WTM/SKM/MRD/19/2019, SEBI
proceeded with the compulsory exit of MdhSEL in terms of clause 2.4 of the Exit
Circular.

As per the guidelines of the exit circular, the companies exclusively listed on a stock
exchange which is seeking exit shall list their securities on any other recognised
stock exchange. If such exclusively listed companies fail to obtain listing on any
other recognised stock exchange, they will cease to be listed companies and will be
moved to the dissemination board by the exiting stock exchange. Such
dissemination board would be provided by a recognised Stock Exchange with
nationwide trading terminals.

In view of the above, since the Company has not obtained listing on any other
recognized stock exchange till date and hence, the same shall be moved to the
dissemination Board by the exiting Stock Exchange i.e. the Magadh Stock Exchange.
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The onus to move the Company to the dissemination Board is on the Magadh Stock
Exchange and hence, the Company needs to wait for further procedure to be
completed by MSE. Once the Company will be moved to the dissemination Board,

the available options will be analysed and the necessary actions will then be taken
accordingly.

S. No. 2

Auditor's Remarks:

In respect of the loans and advance in the nature of loans granted to companies in
the earlier years, schedule of repayment and interest has been stipulated and the
repayments of interest are not regular as per details given below:

Name of | Financial Amount Due Date Extent of | Remarks
the Entity | Year (Rs. in Delay

'000)
Vivid Colors | 2019-20 450 | 31/03/2020 | Unpaid Total
Private amount of
Limited loan
Vivid Colors | 2020-21 3,542 | 31/03/2021 including
Private interest is
Limited unpaid as
Vivid Colors | 2021-22 3,542 | 31/03/2022 on
Private 31.03.2023
Limited
Vivid Colors | 2022-23 4,493 | 31/03/2023
Private
Limited

Our Submission:

Due to non-payment of interest, the Company sent various reminders to Vivid
Colors Private Limited (the borrower). Citing its adverse financial conditions, the
borrower expressed its inability to pay the interest and rather requested to allow
the early repayment of principal amount and to rescind the agreement. On
03.04.2023, the Borrower paid an amount of Rs. 3.70 Crore with a request letter to
treat this payment as repayment of principal amount and not to set off the same as
due interest. The borrower again requested for waiver of interest and acceptance of
early repayment of the loan.
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Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company have occurred after 31% March, 2023 to till date.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo —

A. Conservation of energy:

The steps taken or impact on|The Company has been taking all
conservation of energy. possible measures to conserve energy by

The steps taken by the Company for | supporting existing energy consuming
utilizing alternate sources of energy. machinery and refurbishing them.

Capital investment on energy | Nil
conservation equipment.

B. Technology Absorption:

The company is regularly improving its services with the help of new means of
technology. Your Company is committed to provide the best services to its
customers with the help of latest technology, which is reasonable, according to the
size of the Company. No expenditure has been incurred for research & development
or purchase of technology.

C. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:

There were no foreign exchange earnings during the year under review. Foreign
exchange outgo during the year under review was Rs. 21,95,362/- (Rupees Twenty-
one Lacs Ninety-five Thousand Three Hundred and Sixty-two).

Details of Companies which have become/ceased to be subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associates

None of the Companies have become/ceased to be subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associates of the Company during the year under review.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 29.12.2020 took the
decision to dissolve CSR Committee in view of Sub-Rule 2 of Rule 3 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. According to the said rule, every
company which ceases to be a company covered under subsection (1) of section
135 of the Act for three consecutive financial years shall not be required to —

(a) constitute a CSR Committee; and
(b) comply with the provisions contained in sub-section (2) to (5) of the said section,
till such time it meets the criteria specified in sub-section (1) of section 135.

Net Profit, paid up capital and net worth of the Company during the last 3 (three)
consecutive financial years i.e. F.Y. 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2019-20 were below the
trigger limit specified under section 135(1) of the Act. As such was no longer
required to have a CSR Committee and contribute towards the CSR Expenditure till
such time it meets the criteria specified in sub-section (1) of section 135. Thus, the
Committee was dissolved.

Further, in the F.Y. 2021-22 also, profit, paid up capital and net worth of the
Company remained below the trigger limit specified under section 135(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and as such the Company was not required to contribute
towards CSR during the year under review.

Statement indicating development and implementations of a risk management
policy

The Company has not formulated any Risk Management Policy as the elements of
risk threatening the Company'’s existence are very minimal.

XVIll.Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed/resigned during the

year

Mr. Banshidhar Singh (DIN: 00905021) was appointed as Whole-time Director of the
Company w.e.f. 01.10.2022.
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Mr. Shashi Bhushan Prasad (DIN: 03596446), non-executive director of the Company
is retiring at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered
himself for re-appointment.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunal impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations

No orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company’s operations during the year.

Statement in respect of adequacy of internal financial control with reference to the
financial statements

The company has adequate internal control system commensurate with size of the
company. Adequate internal control measures are there in form of various policies
and procedures issued by the Management covering all critical and important
activities viz. Revenue Management, Hotel Operations, Purchase, Finance, Human
Resources, Safety etc. These policies and procedures are updated from time to time
and the Company continues its efforts to align all its processes and controls with
global best practices. The Company also has a Code of Conduct guiding behaviors of
the senior managerial personnel which is regularly monitored at higher level.

Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
prohibition & redressal Act), 2013

No cases relating to sexual harassment of women at workplace were reported during
the year under review. The Company has constituted the Internal Complaint
Committee as required to be constituted under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal Act), 2013.

Statutory Auditors
At 58" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30.09.2022, M/s Kishor &

Associates, Chartered Accountants, Patna were appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company for the F.Y. 2022-23 to 2026-27.

XXIil. Disclosure in respect of maintenance of cost records:

The company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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XXIV.Secretarial Standards

XXV.

During the year under review, the company has duly complied the Secretarial
Standard on the Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standard on
General Meeting (SS-2) in pursuance to the provisions of Section 118 (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at
the end of the financial year:

The Company has neither made any application under Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year under review neither any proceeding under
the said Code is pending against the Company.

XXVI.Details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-

XXVIL.

time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or
Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof:

There has been no one-time settlement in the Company during the year under
review.

Directors Responsibility Statement

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013,
directors confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31°
March, 2023, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31% March, 2023 and of the Income & Expenditure of the
Company for that period,;
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c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

M/s Bihar Hotels Limited
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Aditya Prakash Sinha) (Shashi Bhushan Prasad)
Managing Director Non-Executive Director
DIN: 00089558 DIN: 03596446

Date: 22.08.2023

Place: Patna
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Annexure-A

Form No. AOC-2
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: The
Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement which is not at arm’s length.

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Not Applicable

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
Not Applicable

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: Not
Applicable

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: Not Applicable

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under
first proviso to section 188: Not Applicable

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

S. | Name of | Nature of Duration of the | Salient terms of Date(s) of Amount
No. | the relationship | contracts / the contracts or approval by | paid as
related arrangements/ | arrangementsor | the Board, | advances,
party transactions transactions if any: if any:
including the
value, if any
1 Richa Relative of | Perpetual Nature of Approval Nil
Sinha Managing transaction: - was given in
Director Payment of Salary | the Annual
(Wife of Mr. Value of General
Aditya transaction: - Rs. Meeting
Prakash 28,33,200/- held on
Sinha) 29.09.2018
2 Anant Relative of | Perpetual Nature of Approval Nil
Prakash Managing transaction: - was given in
Sinha Director Payment of Salary | the Extra-
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(Brother of Ordinary
Mr. Aditya Value of General
Prakash transaction: - Rs. Meeting
Sinha) 74,08,000/- held on
31.12.2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
M/s Bihar Hotels Limited

/4/( '3 el i ot e
L2 (Aditya Prakash Sinha) (Shashi Bhushan Prasad)
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00089558 DIN: 03596446
Date: 22.08.2023
Place: Patna
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED

4
Report on the audit of standalone financial statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Bihar Hotels Limited
which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of profit and loss
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
Paragraph, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Magadh Stock Exchange [MSE], where company’s securities were listed earlier, has been
derecognized by Securities Exchange Board of India [SEBI] effective September 19, 2007. SEBI,
vide Circular No. 36/2008 dated December 29, 2008 mandated the companies which are listed
exclusively on those de-recognized stock exchanges to either seek listing at other stock
exchanges or provide an exit option to the Shareholders as per SEBI Delisting
Guidelines/Regulations after obtaining shareholders’ approval for the same, within a time
frame, to be specified by SEBI, failing which the Company shall stand delisted through
operation of law. SEBI, in response to informal guidance sought by the Company, vide its letter
dated May 4, 2010 informed the company that in view of the Company not being listed in any
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other stock exchange other than MSE, which has been derecognized, the Company may not be
considered as a listed Company and accordingly advised the Company to either seek listing at
other stock exchanges or provide an exit option to its shareholders. The shareholders in its
annual general meeting held on 30th September 2010 authorized the Company to seek listing
in any one or more recognized stock exchanges in India including the stock exchange having
nation-wide terminals wherever applicable. The company has not yet initiated any action
towards listing and pending such listing, the Company has been considered as unlisted
company. The Registrar of Companies Patna suo motto changed the status of company from
listed company to unlisted company and allotted the revised Company Identification Number
on the basis of company being unlisted. Any consequential impact of inaction in regard to
listing/de-listing of the shares has not been ascertained and provided for.

We conducted our ‘audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issu'ed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Board Report but does not
include the accompanying standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the accompanying standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the accompanying standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
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information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of

this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the standalone
financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the

R 75 18



BISRUNR G ASOULCIA LD

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(7.\ Akashwani Marg,
= Khajpura, Patna — 800 014

E-mail: - kishorandassociates@gmail.com

Mob: +91 7782892747

e standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements

represent the ‘underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020’ (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on
the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we enclose in
the ‘Annexure — A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

d)

e)

f)

g)

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in ‘Annexure — B’ which expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Standalone Financial Statements — Refer Note 33 to the Standalone
Financial Statements;

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

(iii)  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company;
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(iv)

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
of Rule 11(e) as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

a) The final dividend paid by the Company during the year in respect of dividend
declared with respect to financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of
dividend.

b) As stated in Note 3(e) to the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of
Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is
subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to
the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.
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(vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility is applicable with effect from April 1, 2023 to the Company
and its subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

For Kishor & Associates
Chartered Accountants
[Firm Registration No. 025602C]

\l" W—
m N

CA. Rahul Kishor Singh
Proprietor
[Membership No. 534043]

Place: PATNA
Date: - 22" August, 2023.

UDIN —23534043BHAYSW3535.
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“ANNEXURE — A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Annexure referred to in sub - paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ section of our Report of even date to the Bihar Hotels Limited for the year ended
March 31, 2023.

(i)

(i)

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE”).

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of PPE which, in our opinion
is reasonable. The assets which were to be covered as per the said program have been
physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have
any immovable properties other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee and hence the provisions of this
clause are not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued its PPE or intangible assets during the year ended March
31, 2023.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no proceedings
initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules thereunder.

(a) As explained to us, the inventory has been physically verified during the year at
reasonable intervals and also at the year-end by the management. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable. As per information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, at any
point of time of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital facility in
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(iii)

excess of X 5 crores from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets, and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given and based on the audit procedure
conducted by us, the Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security, or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or any other parties during the year and
accordingly clause (iii)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable

(b) In respect of the loans and advance in the nature of loans granted to companies in the
current and earlier years, schedule of repayment and interest has been stipulated and the
repayments of interest are not regular as per details given below

Name of the Entity | Financial Amount Due date Extent of Remarks
Year (X in ‘000) delay

Vivid Colors Private | 2019-20 450 | 31/03/2020

Limited Unpaid Total amount of

Vivid Colors Private | 2020-21 3,542 | 31/03/2021 loan including

Limited interest is unpaid

Vivid Colors Private | 2021-22 3,542 | 31/03/2022 as on 31.03.2023.

Limited

Vivid Colors Private | 2022-23- 4,493 | 31/03/2023

Limited [

(c) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for
more than ninety days.

(d) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that
have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing
loans given to the same parties.

(e) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, which were

either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the
loans, investments, guarantees and security made. As on March 31, 2023, there are no
outstanding loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters or related
parties as defined in clause (76) of section2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from the public and consequently, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under are
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of activities of the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, sales tax, value added tax, service tax, duty of customs, cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it, have generally been regularly deposited with
the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on
account of duty of excise.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax,
value added tax, service tax, customs duty, cess and other material statutory dues were in
arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(c) The disputed statutory dues that have not been deposited on account of disputed
matters pending before appropriate authorities are as under:
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Sl Name of Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where dispute is
No. the Statute Dues (X in ‘000) the amount pending
relates
1 Income Tax | Income Tax R1111:10* AY 2016-17 Deputy Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Income Tax Circle 2(2)
Patna
2 Income Tax | Income Tax X1,551.06* AY 2017-18 Deputy Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Income Tax Circle 2(2)
Patna
3 Income Tax Income Tax T  1,242.00° AY 2015-16 Deputy Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Income Tax Circle 2(2)
Patna

*As per the database of the Income tax department — ‘Outstanding Tax Demand’ statement
in www.incometaxindiaefiling.gov.in.

** Tax department has raised a demand without considering credit for taxes.

(viii)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing dues to a bank. The Company has
neither taken any loans or borrowings from a financial institution and government nor
issued any debentures during the year.

(ix)

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority or any other lender.
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(x)

(xi)

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, and
based on the audit procedures performed by us, money raised by way of term loans during
the year have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of
the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not raised
any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations give to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible

debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud on or by the Company, by its officers or employees, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Company.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in

Form ADT- 4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.
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(c) Based on the information and explanations given to us, there are no whistle-blower
complaints received during the year by the Company.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been

disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv)In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to have an

internal audit system as per provisions of the Act. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(xiv) (a) and (b)
are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with them during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the vyear.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, Company is not a Core
Investment Company (‘CIC’) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(xvi)(c) and (d) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of

the records of the Company, the company has not incurred cash losses during the
immediately preceding financial year nor any cash losses during the current financial year.
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(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and
when they fall due.

(xx) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the company is not covered
under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 by virtue of it having ceased to be a
company covered under subsection (1) of section 135 of the Act for three consecutive
preceding financial years in terms of Sub-Rule 2 of Rule 3 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.and hence clause 3 (xx) of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

(xxi) Since this report is being issued in respect of standalone financial statements of the
company, hence clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of the said Order is not applicable.

For Kishor & Associates
Chartered Accountants
[Firm Registration No. 025602C]

CA. Rahul Kishor Singh

Proprietor
[Membership No. 534043]

Place: PATNA
Date: - 22" August, 2023.

UDIN —23534043BHAYSW3535.
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The Annexure referred to in Clause (g) of sub - paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report of even date to the Bihar Hotels Limited for the
year ended March 31, 2023.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bihar Hotels Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Iinternal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
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reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
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misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are

subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Kishor & Associates
Chartered Accountants
[Firm Registration No. 025602C]

CA. Rahul Kishor Singh

Proprietor
[Membership No. 534043]

Place: PATNA
Date: - 22" August, 2023.

UDIN —23534043BHAYSW3535.
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BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

[All Amounts are in Rupees (%) thousands unless otherwise stated]

Notes

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 3
Reserves and Surplus 4
Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings 5
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 6
Long Term Provisions 7
Other Non-Current Liabilities 8
Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings 9
Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 10

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises

and small enterprises 10
Other Current Liabilities 11
Short Term Provisions 12
TOTAL
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 13

Intangible Assets 14
Capital Work-in-Progress 15
Intangible assets under development
Non Current Investments 16
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6
Long Term Loans and Advances 17
Other Non-Current Assets 18
Current Assets
Current Investments 19
Inventories 20
Trade Receivables 21
Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and cash equivalents 22

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 22
Short Term Loans and Advances 23

TOTAL
Significant Accounting Policies 2

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

36,000.00 36,000.00
206,960.09 166,026.85
2,049.76 1,660.96
3,779.71 =
13,803.52 11,967.43
5,525.51 4,995 42
1,799.08 3,416.71
2,922.96 2,927.02
30,990.63 32,350.33
29,212.45 22,884.09
715.75 600.74
333,759.46 282,829.55
133,293.10 100,095.41
= 90.25
3,928.29 -
20,012.80 20,012.80
- 10,197.37
96,516.63 55,823.06
3,643.62 3,643.62
27,998.60 45,008 21
4,239.21 4,381.42
13,546.58 14,640.33
10,764.72 13,469.44
109.89 45.67
19,706.02 15,331.97
333,759.46  282,829.55

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

"This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date"

For Kishor & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number - 025602C

i —

CA.Rahul Kishor Singh

For and on behalf of the Board

A

Aditya P. Sinha

20Nt By

Shashi Bhushan Prasad

Proprietor
[Membership No. 534043]

Place: Patna
Date: 22nd August,2023.

Managing Director
[DIN: 00089558]
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BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, (.D

[All Amounts are in Rupees (%) thousands unless otherwise stated] S e

Notes For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022

Revenue :

Revenue From Operations 24 449 198.26 276,351.17

Other Income 25 13,429.99 7,460.39
Total Income C 4eaem25 28381156
Expenses :

Cost of Raw Material Consumed 26 129,331.43 76,212.99

Employee Benefits Expense 27 128,701.57 95,243.14

Finance Costs 28 1,390.46 884.10

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 29 14,032.18 12,894.17

Other Expenses 30 132,462.29 97,726.93
Total Expenses o 405917.93 282,961.33
Profit/(Loss) Before exceptional and extraordinary items and Taxes 56,710.32 850.23
Exceptional items 30 - -
Profit/(Loss) Before extraordinary ltems and Taxes 56,710.32 850.23
Extraordinary items - -
Profit/(Loss) Before Taxes 56,710.32 850.23
Tax Expenses : 31

Current Tax = %

Deferred Tax 13,977.08 (1,782.62)

Income Tax Expense/(Income) relating to earlier years - (733.30)
Profit/(loss) for the year 42,733.24 3,366.15
Earnings Per Equity Share [nominal value of share Z 2/- each]: 32

Basic and Diluted 2.37 0.19
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
"This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date"
For Kishor & Associates For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number - 025602C

‘gﬁ:‘ﬁéﬁb’ %_/ § V g,\(\M\:h eanaan, Vendad,

CA.Rahul Kishor Singh /' Aditya P. Sinha Shashi Qhushan Prasad
Proprietor / Managing Director Director
[Membership No. 534043] [DIN: 00089558] [DIN 03596446]

Place: Patna
Date:22nd August,2023.




BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED
STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[All Amounts are in Rupees (%) thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended March 31, 2023 For the year ended March 31, 2022
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS AND TAXES AS PER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 56,710.32 850.23
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and Amortization 14,032.18 12,894.17

(Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets (42.37) (127.12)

(Profit) on Sale of Investments (2,134.49) (100.71)

Debit Balances Written-Off/Provided 326.16 o

Provisions/Liabilities Written Back (1,152.00) (1,470.38)

Interest and Finance Charges 1,390.46 884.10

Interest receivable written off - 3,219.70

Interest Income  (490571) 781192  (393607) _ 11,363.69
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 64,522.24 12,213.92
Adjustments for :

[ Increase/(Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities 530.09 337.67

Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Provisions 1,836.09 {1,946.38)

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (211.96) (2,086.87)

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 8,731.22 1,743.68

Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions 115.01 (793.18)

Decrease/(Increase) in Long Term Loans and Advances (33,293.85) 132.04

Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non-Current assets - =

Decreasel(Increase) in Inventories 142.21 66.16

Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables 1,108.75 163.69

Decrease/(Increase) in Short Term Loans and Advances  f{207.28)  (21,249.72) 55803 (2,725.14)
Cash Generated From/(Used in) Operations 43,272.52 9.488.78
Income Tax Refund/(Paid)

Net Cash from (Used in) Operating Activities before Extraordinary ltems ~—
Less: Extraordinary ltems

NET CASH FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 37,327.19

B. CASH FLOW FROM ! (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Fixed Assets (including capital work in progress) (51,380.60) (8,087 .48)
Sale Proceeds of Fixed Assets 42.37 127.12

Capital Advance (1,454.39) (322.81)
Capital Payables (3,016.73) 284367

Inter-corporate Loans - 24,840.00

Purchase of Investments (67,651.21) (39,998.00)
Proceeds From Sale of Investments 86,885.31 5,000.00

Change in Other Bank Balances (64.22) (7.31)
Interest Income Received 41298 (36,226.49) 471.34

NET CASH FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES: (36,226.49)

C. CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Interest and Finance Charges Paid {1,390.46) (883.10)
Proceeds From /(Repayment) towards Borrowings (657.79) (1,220.98)
Dividend Paid net off tax  ,7574AT) (3,805.42) (1,792.68)
NET CASH FROM | (USED IN) FINANCE ACTIVITIES (3,805.42)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents During the Year [A+B+C] (2,704.72)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 13,469.44
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 10,764.72
Cash and Cash Eqguivalents comprise of
Cash on hand 1,870.53
Cheques, drafts on hand -
Balance with banks

in current accounts 8,877.55

in fixed deposit accounts 2016864

1076472

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
"This is Cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date"
For Kishor & Associates For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number - 025602C

8,072.77

_(15,133.45)
{15,133.45)

_(3,896.76)
(3,896.76)

(10,957 44)
24,426 88

 13,489.44

905.27
3,564 06

7,102.40

‘g‘%ﬁl@}" oo N e Qe

CA.Rahul Kishor Singh itya P. Sinha Shashi Bhushan Prasad
Proprietor Managing Director Director

[Membership No. 534043] : [DIN: 00089558] [DIN 03596446]

Place: Patna

Date:22nd August,2023.
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BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2023 O

[All Amounts are In Rupees (¥) thousands unless otharwise stated]

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Bihar Hotels Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in the year 1964 and has its registered office at Patna. The Company is in hospitality business and provides high class hotels services to its customers, both
from India and abroad. The Company at present operates a five star hotel "Maurya - Patna® in the heart of the Patna city which is in operation since 1978.The Company is also holding company of M/s. Svasara
Resorts Private Limited (SRPL) in which it holds the entire share capital including 2 equity shares of # 10 each held through a nominee. SRPL runs a resort in the stale of Maharashira at Tadoba near Nagpur.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The fi ial stat of the P hauebesn, o in d: with the i i i (GAAP) in india. The has p these 1o comply in
all material resp with the A o In the 1o the C (A Rules, 2021 aspmu:ihsd UMrm!nMMBmM 2013 The financial
slaﬁsmuﬂsmsbmpmpemdmnoomaibaﬁsandonmemcmm P under the historical cost The g policies adopled in the preparati are

consistent with those of the previous year.

All assets and liabilities are classified as current and non-current as per Company's normal oparating cycle of 12 months which is based an the nature of business of the Company. Current Assets do nol include
elements which are not expecied lo be realised within 1 year and Current Liabilities do not include items which are due after 1 year, the period of 1 year being reckoned from the reporting date.

2.2 USE OF ESTIMATES:

The of the in with GAAP requires the M, 10 make esti and ions that affect the d of assets and lablities
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. MWIMMaWMNNMWWMMMMmmmwm Tutune results could differ dua
to these and the the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which resuits are b of such inciude provi for
doubtful debts, fulure obligations under empi i benefit plans, mcome taxes and useful life of the Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets,

2.3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION/AMORTISATION :

Property, Plant and Equipment, Depreciation and capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cosl ess di lation and loss, if any, except in case of building which was revalued in the year 1987,
Direct Costs are capitalised until such assets are ready for their intended use, Ptupeﬂy Dlantammummmmwmulmmmonmmmmms}mmmmmmm that are
not yet ready for their intended use and are depreciated from the date on which they are ready for their intended use.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an assel is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carying amount of the asset, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying value of an assels when il is probable that additional fulure economic benefits will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and are charged o the it of profit and loss as and when incurmed.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a pro rala basis on the straight fine method without considering any residual vatue having regard to;

(i) the estimated useful life of the assels is as bed under Il to the G Act, 2013 as amended from time to time;

(ii) the estimated useful lives given below in respect of certain assets thal, in terms of the s intermnal are different from the useful lives prescribed in Schedule il

Assat Useful Lives _ustification

Fumiture & Fixtures 08 years The estimated useful life stated in the adjacent column of the assets is as prescribed under schedule |1 to the

Plant & Machinery 15 years Gompanies Act, 2013 excepl in case of electrical equipment's and kilchen / service equipments grouped

Equipments - Miscellaneous, Services, Kitchen and Electrical 05 years under * Miscellaneous Equipments” where useful life has been determined as 5 years based on technical
estimate which is different from the useful life i under e 11 to the Comp Adl, 2013,

Vehicle - for commercial use 08 years

‘ehicle - other than commercial use 08 years

Computer - computers 03 years

Computer - servers and network 06 years

L id Buliding P B0 years

Leasehold land over the period of lease

ﬁmlheusetmlwaulaparlulanassﬂ.ﬂt!lemslulmpamssignlﬂumlmmmmmlmmaMBdmmmnnmmnkel’\rmmmninjmm

iv) On 01 1987, the company revalued its building existing as on that date. This bullding is measured al fair value on the ion date less I lated depreciation and impairment (osses, It any,
Sev(;gnhﬂdmrmedmo!m ion. In case of lion of Property, Plant and Equipment, anymmmsmbmmmwﬂummwe.mwlthgmmmnmma
revalualion decrease of the same asset previousty in the of profit and loss, in which case the is ized in the of profit and loss. A deficit is gl in

meantamemnfpmﬂlmIuss.mplmmummmnnrﬂsetsanammqumﬂnsmmmmdmﬁwmetmnmuonme

Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets aro at the paid for acquisition of such assels am:arac.mﬂsdumsllassl ion and impai 5 " = 2
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line method basis over their useful life, is tised over a period of three years. L P are over the lease period
subject to a maximum of five years. ) . - .
Gains or losses arising from the or of an i gible assets are determined as the difference t the net and the ying amount of the asset and recognised as income

or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

2.4 INVESTMENTS:

Investments that are readily reatizable and are intended ta be held for not more than a year from the date, on which such investments are made, are ified as curment . All other are
classified as long term i i On initial anition, all are *mmmmmwmmammammmmmummm fees and dufies.
Curmrent Investments are caried in the financial stalements at lower of cost and fair value on an indhvidual basis. me investmenis are camied at cost. Mﬂf‘lm for
diminution in value is made to recognize a decline, other than temporary, in the value of the i such being d and made for each i on of an
investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.
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2.5

28

7

28

29

INVENTORIES:

Stock of grocery, food and beverages, crockery cutlery & finen stores and spare paris are camied lower of cost (computed on First In First Out method) and net realizable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. Cost includes the fair value of consideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those
refundable), imward freight, and other diture directly atiributable to the purch

RETIREMENT AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

(a) Contribution to Provident Fund

Retirement benefil in the form of provident fund is a defined coniribution scheme. The company has no cbiigation, other than the contribution payable to the reg The y
contribution payabie to the provident fund scheme as an exg , when an renders the related service,

b) Gratuity Fund

mcmnypmmgm a defined benefit plan, g the eligible employees in with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 save for ceiling limit which is enhanced to ¥ 50 lakhs. The Company
makes annual o funds by and aged by Life G of india [LIC] for amounts notified by LIC. The Company accounts for the net present value of its
obligations for gratuity benefits based on an P extemal L on the basis of the projected unil credit method carried out as at the Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains of losses

are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year In which they arise.

{c) Leave Encashment

Accumilated isave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as shortdern employee benefit. The the exp cosl of such as the additional amount
that it expecis to pay as a resull of the unused enti that has at the g date.

mmnymsmmmmdmmdmwmmmmmmmm as long-L ployes benefit for Such long-term P are provided Tor
based on the ial val using the proj unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gainsfosses are taken to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise and are not deferred. The

company presenis the leave as a curmen! Rability in the balance sheet, to the exdent it does not have an unconditional rght fo defer its satilement for 12 months after the reporting dale. Where company has the
uncendilional legal and contraciual right to defer the setilement for a perod beyond 12 months, the same is preseated as non-curment liability.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS:

Initial recognition

©On initial all foreign an by apg 1o the forelgn curmency amount, the ge rale the reporting -y and the foreign currency on the date of the
transaction.

Subsequent recognition

As at the reporting date, non-monetary Rems which are camied in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign y are using the ge rate al the date of the transaction. All non-monetary
items which are cared at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a forsign y are reported at the exchang msmexiasdvmmlhe\rﬂuasmdelemﬂmd

All monetary assels and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of period by the rate at the reporting dale. Exchange differences on such restalement are recognised in
1he Statement of Profit and Loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS:

Impaimment is asceriained at each balance sheel date in respect of the Company's Property, Plant and An loss is i the camying amount of an asset exceeds its

recoverable amount, The recoverable amount i the greater of the net selfing price and value in use. Inassaﬁinnvnhnmum the estimated future cash flows are discountad to their present value, based on an
appropriate discounting factor.

CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX:

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and def ‘Iu.!m in the of the net profit or loss for the period. Current tax is measured at the amount expected 1o be paid fo the tax
authorities in accordance with the taxation laws prevailing in the Deferred tax is recognised for all the timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax
assmnafensdlaxmawremnuedandcmiadI‘omnlmwmmmmmmbammmummmmmﬁdemm:ewelmmemnbamhhlengnlrnmm;udldalmadlszassﬂscanbe
realised. Deferred tax assets and lisbilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws thal have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet dale. At each Balance Sheet date, the Company

ised deferred lax assets, i any. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a Jegally enforceable right to set of the recognised amounts and there is an infention fo
sﬁﬂelheasselmdlheiobﬂlyonaneibms Deferred tax assels and deferred tax ilabilities are offset when there Is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and
where the defered tax assets and the defemed tax liabilities relate o taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

2.10 EARNING PER SHARE:

The i d in g the per share pri the nel profit after tax atiributable to the equily shareholders. The number of shares used in basic eamings per share is
weighted average number of equity shams otﬂst.m:ﬂmdurnw&e year.

2,11 LEASE RENTALS:

{a) Where the company Is lesseq:
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantiaily all the risks and benefil of ownership of assets over the lease term, are as lease. Op g lease pay are ¢l as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a siraight line basis, over the period of the lease.

b} Where the company is the leasor:
‘m}asasinmmmswnmmmmrsﬁermhnmmtyalmﬂmuﬂhnaﬂhﬂmﬁhnﬁwmﬁﬁaﬂasmmIemmetsampumnperdinglensssm included in Property, Plan
and Equipment. Lease income on an op g lease is g o(pnoﬁland!ummastmum-llmboslscmmhmw Costs, P as an in the

mamnlﬁmmmwmldMMﬁ:mas!egnlm buni:ammmm efc. are Jy in the of profit and loss,

2.12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Cash and cash eqg for the of cash flow rise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.
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2.13 REVENUE RECOGNITION:

(a) R from =ala of room nights, food and beverages and sllied services relating to hotel operations, elc. is ized upon rendering of services.

(b) Interest income is recognized on & time proportion basis taking into account the amount oulstanding and the rate applicable.

(c) Dividend income is Stated at gross and is recognised when right to receive payment is by the reporting date.

(d) ives under State Palicy is as income when there is that the will comply with the relevant itions and upon y of i
2.14 BORROWING COSTS:

Borrowing costs that are directly 1o the ion or of

: | assets are capitalized es part of the cost of such assets for the period up lo the completion of their acquisition or
construction. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes & substantial period of time to gel ready for its intended use. All other ing costs are changed fo the of profit and loss as incurred.

2.15 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

#,__" is gnised when the C hasa present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are nol discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best q 1o settle the ob al the reporting date. These esti are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the currenl bes! estimates. A for a i mmsmmnmwnmmwmmaammwmmn.wwmmmmmmmmNm
resources. Where there is a possible obligstion or a present

in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. A confingent Rability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured refiably. The company does nol recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

3 SHARE CAPITAL: As at As at
) March 31, 2023 March 3, 2022
Authorized:
40,000,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each £0,000.00 £0,000.00
80,000.00 ) B 80,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up: o S o
18,000,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid up 36,000.00 38,000.00
_ 36,000.00 36,000.00
{a) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Equity Shares No's Amount () No's Amount (¥)
At the beginning of the year 18,000,000 36,000.00 18,000,000 38,000.00
Equity shares issued during the year - - ) &
Outstanding at the end of the year 18,000,000 36,000.00 18.000.000 36,000.00
Cut of 18,000,000 equity shares, 13,500,000 Equity Shares were issued as fully paid up Bonus Shares by of Reserve on N ber 7, 2007
({b) Rights, p and ricth to equity shares:
There is only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 2/- each and there is no change in the number of shares since the bonus issue in November, 2007, Each holder of equity share is entilled to one
vole per equily share. The C and pays divid “hlnﬁanmpaes.'rhsdhmmdpmpusadbymeBunrdorDiradocs'smoﬂwlmwmmmeshmhmrnmesmmgAnnuatammal
Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity ders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the after ibution of all pi in prop 1o their 0
() Details of Equity Sharehoiders holding more than §% shares in the company:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars No. of Shares % hoiding Mo. of Shares % holding
Indo Burma Agencies Pvi, Lid. 7,522,360 A1.79% 7,522,380 1.79%
Maurya Management Pvi. Litd, 6,136,860 45.20% 8,136,860 45.20%
(d) Details of Equity shares held by Promoters:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Name of the promoter % of holding du:;'::’m No. of Shares % of holding % Change during the year
tndo Burma Agencies Pyi. Ltd, 41.79% NIL 7,522,360 41.79% NIL
Maurya Management Pvi. Lid, 45.20% NIL 8,136,860 45.20% NIL
Renuka Sinha 0.33% NIL 60,000 0.33% NIL
Pranaya Prakash Sinha 0.06% HIL 40,000 0.06% NIL
Richa Sinha oo = - NIL W0 000% NIL
== UarNTE _ 15720880 B7.39%
(e) The of the are ing a of 7 0.3 per equity share (15%) for the financial year ended 31 March, 2023. Payment of such dividends is subject to approval by the shareholders of the
company in the ensuring annual general meeting and would result in & total cash oidgo to the company of ¥ 5,400.00.
(f) Security Listing Status
Magadh Stock Exchange [MSE], where the company's securifies were listed earlier, has been derecognized by Securities Exchange Boand of India [SEBI] effeclive September 19, 2007, SEBI, vide Circular No.
dated D 29, 2008 the which are listed exclusively on those d a1 slock o 1o cither seek listing at other stock exchanges or provide an exil option 1o the
Shareholders as per SEBI Delisting Requlati after obtaining shareholders’ app 'fm'lhasame.\\dtrinaljmeframu,lnhespudﬂedbySEBi,ldlngvmid\memeshllllmnddeﬁstnﬂ
through operation of law. SEBI, in response to informal guidance sought by the Company, vide its letter dated May 4, 2010 informed the company that in view of the Company nol being listed in any other stock
axchange other than MSE, which has been d, the C may nol be as a listed Ci and dingly advised the ( 1o elther seek listing at oiher stock exchanges or
pmvheanwuplmwmmmhummmammmminmmm;gmlmnmmuonm‘ 2010 ized the C 1o seek listing in any one or more recognized stock exchanges in
india including the stock exchange having nation wide iy The company has nol yet initiated any aclion towards listing and pending such listing, the Company has been considered as

an uniisted company. The Registrar of Companies, Paina Su0 moto changed the status of the Company as unlisted and alloied revised CIN showing the status as unlisted. Any consequential impact of inaction
and change in status in this regard has not been ascertained and not provided for.
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4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS:

(&)

As at

As at
March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022
Capital Redemption Reserve:
Balance as at year end G 744.30 B il 74430
Revaluation Reserve:
As per |ast account 8,108.20
Less: Withdrawais during the year 501.11
®) = 7,605,08
General Reserve:
As per last account 6368318
Add: Transferrad from revaluation reserve e 50111
©) 64,184.27
Burplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
As per last account 93,493.19 91,026.92
Add: Net profit/(loss) after tax ferred from the Stalement of Profit and Loss 42,733.24 3,388.27
Balance amount available for appropriat 136,226.43 - T 9520319
Appropriations;
Dividend Paid during the year™ 1,800.00 1,800.00
oy 134,426.43 9348319
- (A) + (B) + (C)+ (D)  206,960.09 166,026,885
Represents dividend of  0.10 per equity share on 1,80,00,000 equity shares of ¥ 2 sach (5%) for the financial year ended 31 March, 2022 paid during the year upon ion by the in the
annual general meeting held on 30 Seplember 2022,
5 LONG TERM BORROWINGS: Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[Secured Loans]
Term Loans - From Banks ™ 3,460.98 2,501.14
Less: Curment (1,411.22) (840.18)
2,049.76 1,660.96
* Nature and Maturity profile with respect to long tenm loans are as follows:
Repaid til 31st g
; Repayable in Number Repayable in
T
&m Loan from Bank Nature of security Rate of Interest of e l:n\;m ngn Néot o vear
HDFC Bank Limited - Aulo Loan - Secured Loan Is secured by | tion of Hyundal 8.50% 68 [mm::«le:g ] i 206.81
Crata vehicle commencing from 0S/08/2019 524,89 270.01
HDFC Bank Limited - Auto Loan - Secured Loan s secured by hypothecation of Toyola TA0% 36 751.08 613.82
Innova Crysta vehicle commencing from (Previous Year) { Previous Year)
05/12/2021 180.90 57017
HOFC Bank Limited - Auto Loan - Secured Loan is secured by hypothecation of B.75% 38 NIL 500.59
Volkswagen Virus vehicle commencing from (Previous Year) { Previous Year)
05/04/2023 MIL NIL
As at As at
6 DEFERRED TAX (LIABILITIES) /ASSETS (NET): March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Liabilities 8,139.63 -
Deferred Tax (Assots) (4,359.82) (10,197.27)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (nef) e =0 I {10,197.37)
% The changes during the ypar are as follows:
Under section 438 of 7
In relation to Plant, Property Tax Loss carry Other timing Total
Particulars and Equi 4 . the mm:n;s;fﬂ Act differences =
Deferred tax liabilities /(assets) (nef) as at beginning of the year (©14.73) (4,064.38) (4,080.87) (227.29) 10,157.37)
Deferred tax (income) icharge 8,054.26 4,178.37 TA088 020 3aTe 13,977.08
Deferred tax liabilities /(assets) (net) as at end of the year 8,139.53 (786.01) {3.350.31) (223.50) SIY
As at As at
7 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
For Gratulty 2,952.62 2,579.87
10,851.00 __ 8,387.56
For Leave Encashment 13,603.52 11,967.43
As at Asat
8 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Security Deposits Received 552551 = _ 4m9542
x 5,525.61 4,995.42
As at As at
8 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[Secured]
CGurrent Maturities of Long Term loan * 1,::;::: zx;:
Ba i s
Balance in Cash Gredil Account of HDFC Bank — — 3.416.71

% Cash Credit is secured against hypothecation of all Fixed Assets and is guaranteed by the managing director of the Company.
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10 TRADE PAYABLES: As at
March 31. 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises '™ 282298
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than of micro and small enterprises 30,890.63 o 2,350..
33,913.59 35,277.35
% picro and Small Enterprises
On the basis of information sought and d by the no outstanding dues are payable to the oF Service p who are d under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2008.
Disclosures as required under Section 22 of the said act in relation to amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises:
(i) Principal amounts and interest remaining unpaid
a.) Principal amounts remaining unpaid = =
b.) Unpaid interest due on the above principal amount > -
Total - -
{ii) Armounts of interest paid along with amounts of payment made beyond the due date
a.) Principal amounts paid beyond the due date ~ =
b.) Interest paid on principal amounts paid beyond the due date B =
Total - 7
(iif) Interest due and payabie for the periad
a.) On principal amounts paid during the year = i
b.) On principal amounts remaining unpaid -
Total 5 .
(iv) Amount of interes! accrued and remaining unpaid = -
{v) Amount of further interest due and payabie in the succeeding year, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actuaily paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disaliowance as
& deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006
The following table represent ageing of Trade payables as on March 31, 2023:
Particulars Unbilled amount Not due < 1& 1-2 years 2-3 yoars > 3 years Total
MSME 69.54 - 2,853.42 - - - 2,822,986
Others 8,546 68 - 22293 138.77 10 1763 - 30,980.63
Disputed dues-MSME * - = . . 2 -
Disputed dues-Other - - = = - - -
Total 8,618.22 = 25,147.33 139, 10.27 - 33,913.59
The following table represent ageing of Trade payables as on March 31, 2022: M
Particulars ~ Unbilled amount_ Notdu. E 1-2 years 2.3 years > 3 years Total =
MSME wWSME . el 283841 - - - 2,927.02
Others £,88571 - 22,498 49 671.55 180.58 104.00 32,350,33
Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -
Disputed dues-Other = = = = = 2
Total §,983.32 - 25,337.90 671.55 180.58 104.00 35,277.35
Asat As at
11 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Gustomers at Credit 8,105.92 9,553.33
Withholding and Other Taxes Payables 8,254.05 3,645.85
Capital Payables 555.57 3,572.30
Statutory Dues 954.88 736.84
Salary, Bonus and Other Payables 10,298.26 4,663.83
Other Payabies - amount coliecled on behalf of employ 956.26 636.08
Unclaimed Dividend ™** s S — 4558
29,212.45 22,884.09
""" The Company has lssued bank drafis aggregating to as ¥ 88.51 (Previous Year ¥ 45.68) lowards payabie to that have not been presented for payment. The valldity of such bank drafts

12

have axpired. Llahllitymmﬂﬁmmmmnconsideredwmamymmmwmmmmmemmﬂnmm}wnﬂMsauhnkdmns

SHORT TERM PROVISIONS:

For Leave Encashment

Asat
March 31, 2023

718.75
T15.78
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
As at : Sale/ As at
March 31,2022  Addiions/ Charge i iments March 31, 2023
Gross Block
Land - Leasehold 38.50 3834780 - 36,384.10
L Buliding P ) 91,567.18 . L 91,667.19
Piant and Machinery 82,137.97 - B849.39 81,288.58
Equipmenis 47.920.45 7,088.43 15.18 54,993.70
Computers 7.465.71 1,588.49 41.53 9,012.67
Fumiture and Fixtures 47.523.22 249.23 3209 47,740.36
Vehicles 15,233.80 217855 119197 i 16,220.38
291,884.84 47,452.30 2,130.16 337,206.98
Previous Year 286,174.56 BBBT 4T 297718 201,884.84
Accumulated Depreciation
Land - Leasehoid - 670.15 - 870.15
L Building 45,153.12 3,057.97 - 48,211.10
Pilant and Machinery 42,306.07 4,988.39 537,57 46,756.89
Equipments 42,143.97 2,917.98 15.18 45,0485
Computers 6.532.70 914.02 41.53 7,405.19
Fumiture and Fixtures 44,435.42 708.10 N2z 45,112.30
Vehicies _ n2184 88533 1,191.97 L= __10,711.50
191,789.43 13,841.92 1,817.47 203,913.58
Previous Year 182,156.38 1261024 297718 191,788.42
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023
Net Block
Land -Leasehold .50 35,713.95
L hold Building P 46,414.06 43,356.09
Plant and Machinery 36,831.80 3453189
Equipments 5,778.48 9,945.95
Computers 233,01 1,607.48
Fumiture and Fixdures 3,087.80 2,628.06
Vehicles _ 40888 - ___55os.8s
—_100,085.41 ANE 2.0
Previous Year 104,018.19 100,005.42
14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
As at Sale/ As at
March 34,2022  ‘dditionsiCharge 4 ciments March 31, 2023
Gross Block
Computer Softwan 3,854.22 - - 3,954.22
Previous Year 305420 - - 395422
Amortization
Compuler Software 3,863.97 $0.25 - 3,964.22
Previous Year 3,580.04 28383 - 3,883.97
Net Block
Compiter Software 90.25 L
Previous Year 374.18 0.25
Note:
() The company does not own any property (other than P y where the Comp is the lessee, and the lease agreement Is duly execited in favour of the lessee) as at the Balance
Sheet date.

(inmmmlsmummmwmwwmmmﬂmmmwwﬂmmewnmnmm01Immmamwwuwmmdmummmmuarmm.

() The company does not have intangible assets under development.

APITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS As at As at

5 e Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Office Building under construction . 382 = —

3,928.29 =

GCapital Work-in-F CWIP, hedule as at March 31, 2023;

Particulars < 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years. > 3 years Total

() Office Building under construction 3.92029 - - - 3,928.20
il e = - = L =
Total 3,826.29 - - - 3,928.29

Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) Completion Schedule s at March 31, 2023:

Particulars < 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years Total

(i) Office Building under construction - - - an2828 3,928‘.29

Tem; - £ - =
Total - - - 3,928.29 3,928.28

=53~
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16 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Face Value Number of Shares Amount ¥ Number of Shares Amount T
Long Temm Investments [At Cost]
Trade investmenis
In subsidiaries - Unquoted Equity Shares - fully paid up
Svasara Resonis Private Limited 210 2,000,000 20,000.00 2,000,000 20,000.00
Other than Trade Investments
In Unquoted Equity Shares - fully pald up
Kalyanpur Bullding Materials Private Limited %10 1.800 1.800 12.80
Differential Technologies Limited 210 200,000 200,000 2,000.00
22012.80
Less: Provision for diminution in the value of long term investments 2,000.00
20,012.80
Aggregate Cost of unquoted invesiments 20,012.80
TERM LOANS o As at As at
HELORG AN ATANCES: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[Unsecured - Considered Good]
Capftal Advance 2,687.00 123261
Prepaid Expenses - 506.15
Inter Corporate Loans "™ 84,400.00 50,600.00
Tax Depositions 942063 = 348430
96,616.63 55,823.06

"'Thec-omp'mygmnmlunthlwmrmms loans to Vivid Colors Private Limiled [VCPL] of ¥ 50,600.00 in the FY 2018-20 carrying interest of 7% per annum 1o enable VCPL for setiling part of the loan
avalled by it against pledge of the shares of the Company by the shareholders hoiding 86.63 % capital in the Company. In addition, further loans aggregating ta ¥ 33 800.00 was granted in the FY 202223 camying

interest rate of 7.60%.

As at As at
THER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
B March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Secured, Considered Good
3,643.62
19 CURRENT INVESTMENTS:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Face Value Mumber of Shares Amount ¥ Mumber of Shares Amount 2
Lower of cost and Market Value
In Mutual Fund Units - Unquoted
LIC MF Saving Fund - Regular Plan ®10 - - 154,419 4.999.75
Aditya Birla Sunlife Money Manager Fund - Growth Direct 100 - - 58,609 19,090.00
5B Savings Fund 10 - - 568,089 20,008.46
Aditya Bida Sunlife Low Duration Fund 2100 7,230 3,809.80 - -
Adilya Birla Sunlife Equity Savings Fund-Growth 710 230,403 3,999.80 - =
Bandhan Crisil IBX GILT June 2027 Index Fund 710 465,882 4,999.75 * -
Bandhsan Uttra Short Term Fund 10 775,548 9,999.50 - .
Bandhan Low Duration Fund 10 152,862 4,999.76 - =
27,898.60 45,008.21
Aggregate Cost of unquated investments 27,998.60 45,008.21
Markel Value of Mutual funds based on NAV 28,178.13 45, 71747
As at As at
0/ INVENTORIES: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
At lower of cost and net realizable value] S
Crockery, Cutlery, Linen, Uniform, eic. 1.541.72 v
Provisions 174201 1,154.97
Stores __ 95548 = ___B84AS
4,239.21 4,381.42
As at As at
21 TRADE RECEIVABLES: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Debts Due - Unsecured
Considered Good 13,546.58 14.%-:?
888.07 .
Considered Doublful 7443465 15,543,40
2 888.07 903.07
Less: Provision For Doubtful Debts SR PR
The following table represent ageing of Trade receivables as on March 31, 2023:
Particulars Not due < & months & months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3years Total
U Trade Receivabl
-Considered good - 12.475.48 1817 508.47 544.45 - 13,548.58
-Considered - - - = = 8sa.07 Bag.07
Disputed Trade Recelvables .
-Considered good - - . 3 E 3
-Considered doublful = - - = L = o
Unbilled dues = - = = = = =
Total - 12,475.48 18.47 508.47 544.45 888.07 14,434 65
The following table represent ageing of Trade receivables as on March 31, 2022:
Particulars Not due < 6 months 8 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3years Total
U Trade
-Considered good - 13,029.57 24074 314.55 779.86 266.61 14,640.23
-Considered doubtful - - . - - 903.07 903.07
Disputed Trade Receivables
-Considered good - - - - = - =
-Considered doubiful = = # 2 : -
Unbilied dues - - - - - - -
Total z 13,029.57 249.74 314.55 779.86 _1,169.68 15,543.40
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2023

22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand
Cheques, drafts on hand
Balance with banks

in current accounts

in fixed deposit accounts

Other Bank Balances

in unpaid dividend accounts (Inciudes drafis on hand)

23 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES:
[Unsecured - Considered Good]

Advances for supply of goods and rendering of services

Advances 1o employees

Balances with Revenue Authorities

VAT Refundable **

Amount Receivatie

Interest Receivable (incl. interest accrued but not due)
- on inter corporate depasit
- on other deposit

Prepaid Expenses

4 AT Refundable represents batance refund due against ¥ 2,773.94 dey
incorrect use of C forms pertaining to the financial years 1999-00 to financial year 2010-11. The C:
Dur{numeywcmnmanTﬂnmnlnashmsﬁmedmmlnmmmmmmmmm,mmmmmﬁmdw
penalty of ¥ 689.36 and the batance amount was refunded to the Company during the year.

24 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS :

Sale of Products:
Food and Beverages

Sale of Services:
Rooms
License Fee
Other Services

Foreign Exchange Eamings NIL [Previous year NIL] includes indirect foreign exchange eamings during the year through credit cards and travel

the auditors.
25 OTHER INCOME:

Interest Income:
on fixed deposit with banks [gross]
on other loan and advances
on income tax refund
Dividend Income on Curment Investments
Dividend Income on Long Term Investments

Provision for loans and doubtful advances written back =7

Profit an Sale of Current Invesiments
Provisions/Liabilities Written Back

Bad Debts

Profit on Sale of Plant, Property and Equipment
Miscellaneous

during the

-55-

As at
March 31, 2023

1,870.53

6,877.58
016.64
10,764.72

109.69
10,674.81

As at
March 31, 2023

1,996.56
139.23
1,838.38

126.00
12,052.44

356441

———

FY 2022-23

278,240,08

140,021.33
15,549.42
15,387.43

449,198.26

FY 2022-23

165.73
449273
257,26

2,43448
1,152.26
15.00
4237
5,180.16
13,429.99

&)

March 31, 2022
905.27
3,564.08

7,102.40
1,887.711

13,469.44

45.67

13,616.11

15,331.87

ial year 2010-11 against the total penalty of ¥ 3,505.44 levied by the sales tax authorities for
ompenyhasﬂiadmwlmmmmmm[Tnmemlmmmdemmwimmm.
Company wherein the authorities upheid the levy of

FY 2021-22

147,842.43

103,628.97
13,640.00

uqon&s“smmwlmmwemmmmvmhd by

FY 2021-22

186.80
3.748.27

100.71
1,470.38

127.12
1,826.41
7,460.39




BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2023 0
in Rupees (7) thousands unle: rwise stated] 1
26 COST OF FOOD AND BEVERAGES CONSUMED: FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
o~ : nr' ey o, .ﬂd =y L e
Qpening Stock 1,154.97 1,420.32
Add; Purchases during the year 12991847 . 7593864
131,073.44 T7.367.96
Less: Closing Stock _ \aen e 1154987
128,331.43 76,212.99
** value of imports calculated on CIF basis in respect of provision, stores, wines etc. - Nil [Previous year - # Nil).
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Amount (2) % Amount (¥) %
Imported - - - -
Indigenous 12333143 100.00 76,212.99 100.00
Total 129,331 100.00 76.212.99 100.00

27 EMPLOYEES BENEFITS EXPENSE : FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Salaries, Wages, Bonus, Commission etc. 120,604.98 88,934.56
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 5,016.66 481286
Gratuity 2,37T2.85 689.83
Staff Welfare ___B07.28 = __806.27

128,701.57 95,243.14

28 FINANCE COSTS: FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Interest Expense *** 884.10
) L= 88410
™ Interest expenses includes ¥ 588.27 [Previous year ¥ 1,19] being interest levied in course of GST Annual Audit for three financial years.

28 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION: FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Depraciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 13,941.93 1261024
Amortization of Intangible Assets o __S025 283.93

14,032.18 12,894.17

30 OTHER EXPENSES: FY 2022-23 FY 2024-22
Electricity 20,859.37 14.490.19
Fuel 5,006.22 424026
Gas 851877 5.868.41
Rates, Taxes and Insurance 4.588.81 3.658.91
Upkeep and Service Cost 14,187.16 9.679.69
Renewals and Replacements of Crockery, Gutlery, Linen and Uniform 7.378.93 4.427 11
Adverti and Sales F 1,267.87 328.70
Repair and Maintenance - Building 5,979.67 8.801.40
Repair and Mai - Plant and N i 13.577.24 10,163.15
Repair and Maintenance - Others 10,490.98 848078
Travelling and Conveyance 11.929.48 469187
Legal and Professional Charges ™ 4,539.32 502532
Rent 3,902.28 2,420.40
Printing and Stationery 1,176.06 75452
Communication 588.76 578.15
Running and Maint: # 2,261.19 1.870.70
Directors' Sitting Foes 50.00 B0.00
Debit Balances Wiritten Off 326.16 -
Loss on Sale of Plant, Property and Equipment /Assels Scrapped 312.69 -
Bad debils 266,81 =
Loans and Doublful Advances Writien Off - 340.00
Interest Receivables Written Off - 3219.70
Bank Charges 4181 168,88
Penalties & Fines 75.70 690.97
Commission and Brokerage 6,208.92 4.351.12
Miscellaneous Expenses 327670

B7,726.93
%2 | egal and F p paid to Auditors as follows:
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
For Audit Fee 50.00 50.00
For Tax Audit Fee and Other Audit Fee o000 100.00
150.00 150.00

31 TAX EXPENSES: FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Current Tax = =8
Deferred Tax

Income Tax Expense/(income) Relating to Earier Years
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[All Amounts are in Rupees (7) thousands unless otherwise slated]

32 EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE:

Eaming per share is in with A 20- Per Share - (AS 20)", notified by the Company’s (A g ) Rules, 2021.
FY 2022-23 Fr 2021-22
Caleulation of Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 18,000,000 18,000,000
Mumber of shares at the end of the year 18,000,000 18,000,000
Weighted average 18,000,000 18,000,000
Net Profit After Tax, Available for Equity Sharehoiders 42,733 3,368
Basic and Diluted Eaming Per Share in ® 237 0.18
33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS: FY 202223 FY 2021-22
{a) The estimated amount of contract: ining to be d on capital account and not 13,900.88 Nil
provided for
{b) Contingent Liabilities in relation to tax and other matters
(i) Disputed lax demands relating 10 income tax 3,904.16 28,701.10
(i) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts in respect of legal cases filed - 1,600.00
The management believes mumeddnumdemuntenable and is contesting them. As of the date, the i unable to the ultimate outcome of above matters. However, the
managemsmduesmtwieve based on I the of the litigations will have material adverse effect on the though the could
be rial to the results for any parficular period, depending, in part, upon operating results for such period,
34 LEASES:
Disclosures in respact of op g lease under g - 19 "Leases” notified by the Company’s (A g Ruiles, 2021.
(=) ral iption of the pany's operating lease / license arangements for the assets given:-
The Company enters Into of license flease with & view of eaming income. Auuaemnnm:lmmmnmuunrmmuwmmmmnmmmammmwm
pemmlwmﬂmmmmmemmmemummmmmmm I on tems.
{b) i siption of the - i hmiimearrammnts!mmesmlsmm
The & enters into ting lease ily for the Ci 's land of Hotel Maurya at Patna and Bolly Treat Exp al Gyan Bhawan, Paina. Some of the significant terms
and conditions for the arrangements are:
(i) the lease on the expiry of the lease period, is required to vacale the premises and deliver the vacant p to the lessor p y
{ii) the exiension of the lease period is allowed on mutually acceptable terms.
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
{c) As Lessar
mmmmnmmmummmm 15,5649.42 13,649.09
(il Lease rentals ivable in non ing lease period in nexd one year 15,549.42 13,649.09
(iif) Lesise rentals ivable in non llable operating lease period in nexd two lo five years - -
(iv) Lease rentals in non b ating lease period in later than next five years - -
(d) As Lessee
(i) Lease rentals debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 3,902.28 2,420.40
() Lease rentals payable in non canceliable operating lease period in next one year 3,198.92 2,662.44
(Iif) Lease rentals payable in non canceliable operating lease period in nexdt two to five years 1,200.00 5,324.88
(iv} Lease rentals payable in non cancellable operating lease period in later than next five years 12,900.00 - -
35 SEGMENT REPORTING:
'] ng and hence of rise ion is not app under A d 17 - Reporting” (AS-17) nofified by the Company's
mmmunusmmrasmmzw mmﬁmmmwmmmmhe P since all the are in India.
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[Anl Amounts are in Rupees (%) thousands unless alherwise stated]

(&)

36 DUES IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES NOT HEDGED BY ANY DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENT:

Receivables
Payables

37 INCOME AND EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES : (BASIS - MERCANTILE):

INCOME

EXPENDITURE

Comimission

Travelling and Conveyance
38 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

(A) The ¢ has the in the

Provident Fund {including administration charges paid)
Employees State Insurance

of Profit and Loss which are

@)demmumnpanfspustmlmmhun«ﬂ‘lplamlufIbumuuyass]ndud‘ngnsmmmdlreﬂmmﬂvmbam.\ﬂidﬂsmﬁﬁmbgmomwmMleduwnbytheaudm

Particulars

Reconciliation of opening and closing of the

Obligations at the begimning of the yaar
Service cost

Plan amendment cost / past service cost
Interest cost

Actuarial (gain)fioss

Benefits paid

Obligations at the ond of the year

Change in Plan Assets

Plans assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value
Aciual retum on plan assels

Expected relum on plan assets

Contributions

Actuarial (gain)loss

Benefits

Pians assets at the end of the year, at fair value

P value of the

Reconciliation of Present Value of the Obligation and the Fair Value of the Plan Assets

Presant value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets al the end of the year
(Assote) / Liability recognized in the balance sheet

Particulars

Cost For the Year
Current service cost
Plan amendment cost / Past service cost

Nel cost for the year

Reconciliation of Liabitity Recognized in the Balance Sheet
Opening ned (liability) / assels

Expenses recognized

Cantribution by the Company

(Liability) / assets recognized in the balance sheet

Assumptions

Interest rate

Estimated rate of retumn on plan assets
Rate of salary increases

Tha estimates of future salary fered in rial

take account of inflation,
The above Information has been cedified by the acluary and has been relied upon by the Auditors.

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Nil Nit Nil Wil
USD 464 INR 45.94 usD 91 INR 456,84
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
527.39 542.24
__1667.98 - =
2,195.37 542.24
under G foF and Other Funds:
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
4,656.70 4,371.98
359.96 44087
Post Retirement Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment (Unfunded)
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
26,461.80 28,105.50 9,988.29 13.417.46
1519.63 1,567.87 1,688.13 1,610.88
173881 187284 624.58 TI4.73
888.51 (982.76) ar2.22 (3,188.18)
. mese)  (3831.84) (1,606.49) . _(2,824.80)
28,828.55 26,461.80 11,566.73 9,988.20
23,881.93 26,215.35 - -
161948 181871 - '
2,000.00 - 1,606.49 2,624.80
153.92 (220.29) = =
(4,779.30)_ (3.931.84) (1,606.49) (282480
26,876.03 23,881.93 - -
18,828.55 26,461.80 11,666.73 9,888,301.00
__ {s5878.0%) = (2388183) 0 - S s
2.952.52 2,5719.87 11,566.73 9,988,301.00
Past Retirement Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment (Unfunded)
FY 202223 FY 2021-22 FY 202223 FY 2021-22
1,519.63 1,587.87 1,688.13 1,619,851.00
1,738.84 1,672.94 624.58 T74,731.00
{1,619.48) (1.818.71) - ¥
734.58 (782.47) 872.22 __(3.198,180.00}
2,373,865 680.63 3.184.93 (804,568.00)
(2,579.87) (1,800.24) 19,588.29) (13.417,464.00)
(2,373.65) (689.67) (3,184.92) 804,568.00
__2,000.00 s 160849 2,624,595.00
(2,953.52) (2.579.87) (11.566.73) (8,988,301.00)
TA0% 6.80% 740% 6.80%
7.01% 68.75% -
7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Y. F tion and other rel t factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment markel.

The Company made annual contributions to the LIC of an amount advised by the m.chnymmmuﬂmwLn’.‘.nrmehvmummwmmormmmmwmwmt
type.

Summary of the Post Retirement Gratuity (Funded) plan is as follow:
Fund balance 31/03/23 310322 # 31703121 30/03/20 # 3103719
Defined benefit obligation at end of the period (28,828.55) (26.481.79) (28,105.59) (27,548.95) (23,885.09)
Plan Assels at end of the period 25,878.03 23881482 28,215.35 23,522.55 2255117
Funded Status (asset) / liability (2,953.52) (2,579.87) (1.680.24) (4,027.40) (1.347.82
(Assat) / Liability recognised in Balance Sheet (2.853.52) (2,579.87) {1.800.24) (4.,027.40) (1.347.92)
Experience adjustments on pian liabilities (1,426.58) 281.30 284 750.10) (1.095.51)
Experience adjustments on plan assels 153.92 (220.30) (233.33) J (444.36)
Acluarial Gain/ due to on assum 538.47 701.46 1,033.81 (174.96) (736.83)
Summary of the Leave Encashment Scheme (Unfunded) i5 a5 follaw.
Particulars 310323 3t/oyz2 # 31/03/21 30/03/20 # /0318
Defined benefil obligation at end of the period (11,566.73) (9,568.30) (13,417.46) (13,270.31) (9,330.81)
Plan Assets at end of the period - . - - -
(Asset) / Liability recognised in Balance Sheet (11,566.73) (8,888.30) (13.417.46) (13,270.31) (9,330.81)
peri on plan {1,102.87) 291846 1.250.13 (2,604.48) (3,510.85)
Experience adjustments on assets s . 5 . 5
Actuarial Gain/l n:u u:p‘ml an ons 230,65 260.72 583.50 (113.50) 12.03
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3% OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(a) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(b} The Company has not ad d any loans or ad in the nature of loans to specified persons viz. promoters, directors, KMPs. related parties which are repayable on demand or where the agreement
does not specify any terms or period of repayment.

(&) The Company has ulilised funds raised bomowings from banks for the specific purpeses for which they were issuedftaken. The Company did not issue any securities during the year

(d) The Company has not been declared as a willul defaulier by any lender who has powers to declare a company 85 & wilful defaulter at any time during the financial year or after the end of reperting period but
before the date when ane

(e) The Comg has not or loaned or d funds to any other g {s) ar ) foreign entities (| ;) with the that the shall:
{i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or emtities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfl of the pany (Litimate B or
{ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfl of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(f) The Company has nat received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the und i in writing or ) that the Company shall:

{i) diractly or indirectly fend or invest in other persons or enlities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfl of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimale Beneficiaries.

{g) There are no transactions and / or balance outstanding with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013.

{h) The Company does not have any which Is not in the books of sccounts but has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Acl,
1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

{i) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Vinual Currency during the financial year,

(i) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction en number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(k) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be reg| with the Reg of Companies (ROC) beyond the statulory period.
(1) Quarterty retum/statement of current assets filed by the company with bank are in agreement with the books of accounts.

{m) During the year no Scheme of Arrangement has been formulated by the Company/pending with competent authority.
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

The disclosure of relaled party relationships and transactions with the related parties are given as under:

A. Related Party Relationships:

Description of Party Relationship

Mr. Aditya Prakash Sinha Managing Director - Key Management Personnel

Mr. Shashi Bhushan Prasad Non Executive Direclor - Key Management Personnel

Mr. Ajit Kumar Non Executive Director - Key Management Parsonnel

Mr. Banshidhar Singh Whole-time Director - Key Management Personnel (w.e.f October 01, 2022)
Mr. Anant Prakash Sinha Employee - Relative of Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Ms. Richa Sinha Employee - Relative of Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Differential Technologies Limiled Enterprise Undar Comman Control

Kampilya Builders Private Limited (under Liquidation) Enterprise Under Common Control

Jenson & Nicholson (Incia) Lid. (under Liquidation) Enterprise Under Common Control

Jenson & Nicholson Paints Pyt Lid. (under L } Enterprise Under Common Control

Maurya Management Pvi. Ltd. Enterprise Under Commaon Control

Indo Burma Agencies Pvt, Lid, Enterprise Under Comman Control

Svasara Resorls Private Limited ‘Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company

B. Transactions during the period with the Related Parties are as under:

Transaction Name of the Party Refationship FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Loans and Doubtful Advances Written Off Kampilya Builders Private Limited Enterprise Under Common Control - 188 562.56
(under Liquidation)

KMPs' Remuneration Mr. Aditya Prakash Sinha Managing Direclor 5,852.13 5.95213

KMPs' Remuneration Mr Bansidhar Singh ( w.e.f 01.10.2022) Whale-time Director 1.430.80 -

Director Sitting Fees Mir. Shashi Bhushan Prasad Mon Exgcutive Director 20.00 30.00

Director Sitting Fees Mr. Ajit Kumar Non Executive Director 30.00 50.00
of KMPs' j Mr. Ananl P, Sinha Employee - Retative of KMP 7.408.00 7.408.00

Relative of KMPs" Remuneration Ms. Richa Sinha Employee - Relative of KMP 2,833.20 2,833.20

Payment of Dividend Indo Burma Agencies Pvi. Lid. Enterprise Under Common Control 75224 752.24

Payment of Dividend Maurya Management Pvt. Lid. Enterprise Under Commen Conltrol 813.60 B13.89

C. Cloging Balances at the year end:

Name of party As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
4 yabi Panciati Payables
Ms. Richa Sinha - 12.50 = 12.50

D. Balance of Investment in share capital at the year end:

Nama of party As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Svasara Resoris Private Limited 20,000.00 20,000.00
Differential Technologies Limited 2,000.00 2,000.00
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&)

[All Amounts are in Rupees (%) thousands unless otherwise stated]
41 DISCLOSURE OF KEY RATIOS
fata As at Asat N
i Repcerator March 31,2023  March 31, 2022 it
Cument Ratio (in imes) Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.16 1.50 (22.57)
Debt-equity ratio (in times)  Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 0.02 0.03 (33.33)
m‘:‘;m e, g L ilable for debt service  Debt Service 27.13 86.66 21328
Return on ratio Net Profits afier taxes — Preference
fin %age) equity Dividend (if any) Average Shareholder's Equity 19.21% 1.67% 1,050.30
[
n"nm Sumaser: 185 Cost of goods sold or sales Average Inventory 20,01 17.26 73.87
Tm?:f,m"’“m Net Credit Sales Average Accounts Receivable 3187 1877 8978
;n""“;s;m tumover ralio. ey creqit Purchases Average Trade Payables 374 2.03 8424
Net
Hm::"w wmover =0 00 - et Sales Average Working Capital 2184 9.1 13547
Net profit ratlo (in %hage) Net Profit after tax Net Sales 2.51% 1.22% B79.51
Return on capital ployed
P bl Eaming before interest and taxes  Capiial Employed 23,30% 0.84% 267381
B At
ol LI Ui Avg fund 0.04 101.00 2
Debt-equity ratio has due to ip made during the year which has reduced the g debt as P fop year
Debt service pe ratio has i die for in cash iy ings in comp to the p year
Retun on capital employed and retum on equity d with i in of g manging during the year,
Inventory fumover rafio i P iy due fo peralions in cument year as compared fo previous year which was impacted by COVID-19
Trade receivable fumover ratio wilh in volume of activity during the year as compared fo previous year which was impacted by COVID-19
Trade payable ratio with in volume of business activity during the year as compared fo previous year which was impacted by COVID-19
Net capital turmowver ratio with imypr wilh Ir ing net sales
Met profit ratio improved over the previous year with an imp in busi
Increase in return on investment is mainly on account of profit of sale of curent investments during the year
DETAILS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE AND GUARANTEES GIVEN COVERED UNDER SECTION 186(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
a. In respect of invesiments made - refer Nole 16 ( Non - Current Investment) and Note 18 (Current investment)
b. In respect of loans and guarantees given - details are given here below:
As at As at
MName of the Company Purpose March 31, 2023 March 34, 2022
Svasara Resorts Private Limited Corporate Guarantee against NEFC Loan - 35,000.00
Vivid Colours Private Limited '™ Working capital loan 84,400.00 50,600.00

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENSES

The company is not covered under seclion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 by virtue of it having ceased to be a company covered under subsection (1) of section 135 of the Act for three consecutive financial
years (FY 2018-20, FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22) in terms of Sub-Rule 2 of Rule 3 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rutes, 2014,

All inthe ial

and notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees upto two

&5 per tha req; of I, unless.

PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES:

The company has reclassified previous year figures 1o conform 1o this year’s classification.

For Kishor & Associates For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number - 025602C
/f?'%"ﬂ%\ﬁ‘/’

LN SO DO Dpaledy

CA.Rahul Kishor Singh Aditya P. Sinha Shashi Bhushan Prasad
Propristor Managing Director Director
[Membership No. 534043] [DIN: 00088558] (DN 03556446)

Place: Patna
Diate: 22nd August 2023,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bihar Hotels Limited
(“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary — Svasara Resorts Private Limited (the Holding
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as the “Group”) which comprises the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of profit and loss and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
Paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its consolidated profit and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Magadh Stock Exchange [MSE], where company’s securities were listed earlier, has been
derecognized by Securities Exchange Board of India [SEBI] effective September 19, 2007. SEBI,
vide Circular No. 36/2008 dated December 29, 2008 mandated the companies which are listed
exclusively on those de-recognized stock exchanges to either seek listing at other stock
exchanges or provide an exit option to the Shareholders as per SEBI Delisting
Guidelines/Regulations after obtaining shareholders’ approval for the same, within a time
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frame, to be specified by SEBI, failing which the Company shall stand delisted through
operation of law. SEBI, in response to informal guidance sought by the Company, vide its letter
dated May 4, 2010 informed the company that in view of the Company not being listed in any
other stock exchange other than MSE, which has been derecognized, the Company may not be
considered as a listed Company and accordingly advised the Company to either seek listing at
other stock exchanges or provide an exit option to its shareholders. The shareholders in its
annual general meeting held on 30th September 2010 authorized the Company to seek listing
in any one or more recognized stock exchanges in India including the stock exchange having
nation-wide terminals wherever applicable. The company has not yet initiated any action
towards listing and pending such listing, the Company has been considered as unlisted
company. The Registrar of Companies Patna suo motto changed the status of company from
listed company to unlisted company and allotted the revised Company Identification Number
on the basis of company being unlisted. Any consequential impact of inaction in regard to
listing/de-listing of the shares has not been ascertained and provided for.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the consolidated financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Board Report but does not
include the accompanying consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the accompanying consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of

this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the consolidated
financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.
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The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
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ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements of, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements/financial information of Svasara Resorts
Private Limited — Subsidiary company, whose financial statements/financial information
reflect total assets of T 77,647,049 as at 31st March, 2023, total revenues of 4
46,362,357 and net cash flows amounting to I 15,252,008 for the year ended on that
date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements also include the Group’s share of net profit of X 4,675,252 for the year
ended 31st March, 2023, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in
respect of subsidiary company, whose financial statements/financial information have
not been audited by us. These financial statements/financial information have been
audited by other auditor whose report have been furnished to us by the Management
and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
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amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary and our report in terms of
sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

(b) Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters
with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and
the financial statements/financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on
the comments in the auditors’ reports of the Holding company and its subsidiary company
incorporated in India, we report hereunder the matter specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable:

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO
report issued by us and the auditors of the respective companies included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company, we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports of the said respective companies
included in the consolidated financial statement except that on clause 3(iii) and clause
3(vii)(c) of the Order as given in our CARO report of the standalone financial statements of
the Holding Company.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b) Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified

Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from our exa mination of those books.
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d)

f)

g)

h)

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company,
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, incorporated in
India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in ‘Annexure — A’ which expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid/provided by the Group to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group — Refer Note 33 to the
consolidated Financial Statements;

The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the by the Holding Company and
its subsidiary company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Group from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us, nothing has come to our or
other auditors’ notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under

sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatement.

a) The final dividend paid by the Holding Company during the year in respect of
dividend declared with respect to financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 is in
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accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of
dividend.

b) As stated in Note 3(f) to the consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company have proposed final dividend for the year which
is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to
the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

For Kishor & Associates
Chartered Accountants
[Firm Registration No. 025602C]

CA. Rahul Kishor Singh
Proprietor

[Membership No. 534043]
UDIN: 23534043BHAYSX2717

Place: PATNA
Date: 22" August 2023.
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“ANNEXURE — A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Clause (g) of sub - paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and

Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report of even date to the Bihar Hotels Limited for the
year ended March 31, 2023.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bihar Hotels Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date which excludes internal financial
controls over financial reporting of its wholly owned subsidiary which is incorporated in India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
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reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
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evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditor on internal financial controls
system over financial reporting of the Subsidiary referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, the Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to
subsidiary, is based on the corresponding report of the other auditor of such company
incorporated in India wherein the subsidiary company is exempted from getting an audit
opinion with respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting by
virtue of exemption provided to private company vide notification dated June 13, 2017.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
For Kishor & Associates
Chartered Accountants
[Firm Registration No. 025602C]
CA. Rahul Kishor Singh
Proprietor

[Membership No. 534043]
UDIN : 23534043BHAYSX2717

Place: PATNA
Date: 22" August 2023.
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BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

[All Amounts are in Rupees (%) thousands unless otherwise stated]

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Long Term Provisions

Other Non-Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Short Term Borrowings

Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises

Other Current Liabilities

Short Term Provisions

TOTAL
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets

Capital Work-in-Progress

Intangible assets under development

Non Current Investments

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Long Term Loans and Advances

Other Non-Current Assets

Current Assets
Current Investments
Inventories
Trade Receivables
Cash and Bank Balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Short Term Loans and Advances

TOTAL

Significant Accounting Policies

Notes

oW

@~ o,

10
10

11
12

13
15
16
17
18
19
21
22

22
23

As at
March 31, 2023

36,000.00
217,255.46

18,157.83
9,155.56
15,694.42
5,525.51

2,794.77
2,922.96
33,302.86

49,438.56
753.81

- 391,001.73

191,986.07
4,169.68

12.80
97,043.14
3,995.59

28,510.55
4,651.62
13,634.09

26,016.73
109.90
20,871.56

39100173

The accompanying notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

"This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date”

For Kishor & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number - 025602C

paings—

CA.Rahul Kishor Singh
Proprietor
[Membership No. 534043]

Place: Patna
Date:22nd August,2023.
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For and on behalf of the Board

- /1_/
Aditya P. Sinha
Managing Director

[DIN: 00088558]
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Shashi Bhushan Prasad
Director

As at
March 31, 2022

36.000.00
171,646.95

18,442.71

13,542.11
4,995.42

4,358.61
2,927.02

35,062.86
45,405.59
623.50

169,760.46
90.25
175.00

12.80
4,927.19
56,540.86
3,890.59

45,605.16
4,919.89
15,122.53

20,544.49
45.67
21,369.88

333,004.77_

[DIN 03596446]
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BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2023

[All Amounts are in Rupees (%) thousands unless otherwise stated]

Revenue :
Revenue From Operations
Other Income

Total Income
Expenses :
Cost of Raw Material Consumed
Employee Benefits Expense
Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Other Expenses
Total Expenses
Profit/(Loss) Before exceptional and extraordinary ltems and Taxes
Exceptional items
Profit/(Loss) Before extraordinary tems and Taxes
Extraordinary items
Profit/(Loss) Before Taxes
Tax Expenses :
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Income Tax Expense/(Income) relating to earlier years
Profit/(loss) for the year

Earnings Per Equity Share [nominal value of share ¥ 2/- each]:
Basic and Diluted

Significant Accounting Policies

24
25

26

28
29

30

31

32

2

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

&

For the year ended

March 31, 2022

The accompanying notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

"This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date"

For Kishor & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number - 025602C

cﬁw_
CA.Rahul Kishor Singh

Proprietor
[Membership No. 534043]

-
Mﬂa P.siffa \
Managing Director
[DIN: 00089558]

Place: Patna
Date:22nd August,2023.

Sh

For and on behalf of the Board

495,357.73 300,978.46
13,632.86 7,533.74
= 508,990.59 308,512.20
133,668.37 78,709.51
138,736.27 104,460.33
3,742 .67 4,042 52
16,724.33 15,482.01
153,744.02 107,927.87
461566 31063224
62,374.93 (2,120.04)
62,374.93 (2,120.04)
62,374.93 (2,120.04)
883.68 -
14,082.74 (1,595.46)
- (733.30)
47,408.51 208.72
2.63 0.12
(- AC RIS
Shashi Bhushan Prasad Q‘k N‘ '
Director
[DIN 03596446]



BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[All Amounts are in Rupees (¥) thousands unless otherwise stated]

For the year ended Mar 31, 2023

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS AND TAXES AS PER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

For the year ended March 31, 2022

62,374.93 (2,120.04)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and Amortization 16,724.33 15,492.01
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 312.69 -
(Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets (42.37) (127.12)
(Profit) on Sale of Investments (2,134.49) (100.71)
Debit Balances Written-OffiProvided 2,970.57 18.92
Bad Debts Recovered (15.00) -
Provisions/Liabilities Written Back (1,183.00) (1.490.00)
Interest and Finance Charges 3,742.67 404252
Interest receivable written off ‘ 3,219.70
Interest Income . l4925.42)  15449.98 __ (3,789.88) 17,265.44
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 77,824.91 15,145.40
Adjustments for :
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities 530.09 337.67
Increasef(Decrease) in Long Term Provisions 2,152.31 (1,743.99)
Increasel{Decrease) in Trade Payables {581.71) (2,316.20)
Increase/{Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 6,382.03 4,671.52
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions 130.31 (770.40)
Decrease/(Increase) in Long Term Loans and Advances 506.15 153.36
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non-Current assets (105.00) (180.00)
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories 268.27 (222.26)
Decreasel(Increase) in Trade Receivables 1.503.44 234,99
Decreasel/(Increase) in Short Term Loans and Advances . 4s2337 12,308.27 - (79.82) 85.07
Cash Generated From/(Used in) Operations 90,133.17 15,230.47
Income Tax Refund/(Paid) _ 8,837.71) _ (403.58)
Net Cash from (Used in) Operating Activities before Extraordinary ltems 83,495.46 14,826.88
Less: Extraordinary ltems AT -
NET CASH FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 83,495.46 14,826.88
B. CASHFLOW FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Fixed Assets (including capital work in progress) (53,167.06) (10,646.52)
Sale Proceeds of Fixed Assets 42,37 127.12
Capital Advance {1,454.39) (322.81)
Capital Payables {3,016.73) 279483
Inter-corporate Loans (33,800.00) 24,840.00
Purchase of Investments (67,656.21) (39,998.00)
Proceeds From Sale of Investments 86,885.31 5,000.00
Change in Other Bank Balances (63.59) (7.60)
Interest Income Received 93080 (71,289.50) (172.96) (18,385.94)
NET CASH FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES: (71,299.50) (18,385.94)
C. CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and Finance Charges Paid {3,742.87) (4,042.52)
Proceeds From /(Repayment) towards Borrowings (1,223.89) (5,447.83)
Dividend Paid net off tax o _11,757.16) (6,723.72) (1,792.68) __ (11,283.03)
NET CASH FROM / (USED IN) FINANCE ACTIVITIES (6,723.72) (11,283.03)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents During the Year [A+B+C] 547224 (14,842.08)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 20,544.49 135,386.57
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year __26,016.73 _20,544.49
ash Equivale mprise of
i -
Cheques, drafts on hand 5 3,564.06
i il 1390258 1874852
i i 9,536.35 N ) £
in fixed deposit accounts _E_?ElQlﬁii. 2064449
The accompanying notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
“This is Cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date”
For Kishor & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number - 025602C
-
v )
L SN N D“(n’
CA.Rahul Kishor Singh Aditya P. Sinha S_hasm Bhushan Prasad
Proprietor Managing Director Director
[Membership No. 534043] [DIN: 00089558] [DIN 035964486]
Place: Patna
Date:22nd August,2023.
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BIHAR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2023 0

[All Amounts are in Rupees (%) thousands unless otherwise stated]
1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Bihar Hotels Larmlzed ("the Company") was incorporated in the year 1964 and has its registered office at Patna. The Company is in hospitality business and provides high
class hotels services to its customers, both from India and abroad. The Company at present operates a five star hotel "Maurya - Patna” in the heart of the Patna city which is
in operation since 1678.The Company is afso holding company of M/s. Svasara Resorts Private Limited (SRPL) in which it holds the entire share capital including 2 equity
shares of ¥ 10 each held through a nominee. SRPL runs a resort in the state of Maharashira at Tadoba near Nagpur.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The cor financial ts of the company have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in India. The company
has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the Accounting Standards as specified in the Annexure to the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2021 as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial st s have been prepared on accrual basis and on the going

concem assumption under the historical cost convention. The accounting polic dopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of the previous
VRAr

All assets and liabilities are classified as current and non-current as per Company’s normal operating cycle of 12 months which is based on the nature of business of the

Company. Current Assets do not include elements which are not expected to be realised within 1 year and Current Liabilities do not include items which are due after 1 year,
the period of 1 year being reckoned from the reporting date,

2.2 PRINC’PLES OF CONSOLIDATION:

are idated from the date on which centrol is transferred to the Group and are not consolidated from the date that control ceases. The financial statements

of the Company and its y have been consolidated on a line-by-fine basis by adding together like items of assets, liabiliies, income and expenses. Intra-group
balances and intra-aroup transactions and resultina unrealised orofils have been eliminated.

2.3 USE OF ESTIMATES:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP req the Manag to make esti and pti that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabiliies and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period, Although thesa estimates are based on the
manag 's best knowledge of current events and ac'dons future resull.s could differ due to these esti and the diff the actual results and the
estimates are recognised in the periods in which resulis are | i. Examplas of such esti include provision for doubtiul debts, future obligations under

employee retirement benefit plans, income taxes and useful life of the Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets

24 PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION/AMORTISATION :
Property, Plant and Equipment, Depreciation and capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and recognised accumulated impairment loss, if any, except in case of buiiding
which was revalued in the year 1987. Direct Costs are capitalised until such assets are ready for thair intanded use. Property, plant and aquipment in the course of

construction (Capital work-in-progress) comprises of the cost of such assets that are not yet ready for their intended use and are depreciated from the date on which they
are ready for their intended use.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the camying amount of the asset, and is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the carying value of an assets when it is probable that additional future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and renewals are charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred,

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on 3 pro rata basis on the straight line method without considering any residual value having regard to;

(i) the estimated uzeful life of the assets is as p under 1l to the Cx Act, 2013 as amended from time (o time,;

(i) the estimated useful lives given below in respect of certain assets that, in terms of the mar t's internal t, are different from the useful lives prescribed in
Schedule |l
Asset Useful Lives Justification

Furniture & Fixtures 08 vears The estimated useful life stated in the adjacent column of the assets is as
Plant & Machinery 15 vears prescribed under schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013 except in case of
Equi - Mi 15, Services, Kitchen and Electrical 05 years electrical equipment's and kitchen / service equipments grouped under ~
Vehicle - for commerical use 06 years Miscellaneous Equipments” where useful life has been determined as 5
Vehicle - other than commerical use 08 vears years based on technical estimate which is different from the useful life
Computer - computers 03 vears prescribed under schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013.

Computer - servers and network 06 vears

Leasehold Building (including improvements) 60 years

Leasehold land over the period of lease

(ifiy the useful life of a part of an asset, if the cost of such part is significant to the total cost of the asset and |s different from the useful life of the remaining asset.

(iv) On 01 April 1987, the company revalued s building existing as on that date. This building is measured at fair value on the revaluation date less accumulated

p ion and imp losses, if any, recognized after the date of the revaluation. In case of revaluation of Pmpeﬂ]l Plant and Equcprnent any revaluation surplus is
credited to the mvaluahnn reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset p ized in the stab t of profit and loss, in
which case the i is ani in the of profit and loss. A revaluation deficit is recognized in the sla‘tamam of profit and loss, except to the extent that it

offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognized in the asset revaluation reserve.

Intanaible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets are atthec paid for isition of such assets and ane carried at cost less acc lated rtisation and impai

assets are ised on a straight line method basis over their est d useful life. is ised over a period of three years. Leasehold improvements
are amartised over the lease period subject to a maximum of five vears. B : .
Gains or losses arsing from the reti or disp of an ir ible assets are d as the di b the nat proceeds and the camying amount

of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

2.5 INVESTMENTS:

Investments that are readily realizable and are intended to be held for not mere than a year from the date, on which such investmenlts are made, are classified as cumrent
investments. All other imsslmmts are classified as long term i On initial ition, all ir are d at cost. The cost comprises purchase price
and directly attri bl n charges such as ge, fees and duties. Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value
determinad on an mdwldua! investment basus Long-term investments are carmied at cost. However, prmnsnun for dmnumn in value is made to recognme a decline, other
than temporary, in the value of the investn , such ion being ined and made for each ir dividually. On disposal of an i it, the difference
between its carrying amount and net disp prooeedms harged or credited to the stat 1t of profit and loss.
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[All Amounts are in Rupees (%) thousands unless otherwise stated]

286

27

28

29

210

21

INVENTORIES:

Stock of grocery, food and beverages, crockery cutlery & linen stores and spare parts are caried lower of cost (computed on First In First Out method) and net realizable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the costs of completion and selling expenses, Cost includes the
fair value of consideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those refundable). inward freiohl. and other expenditure directiv attributable to the }

RETIREMENT AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

{a) Contribution to Provident Fund

Retlirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the regulatory
authorities. The company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an ! renders the related service.

(b} Gratuity Fund

The Company provides gratuity, a defined benefit plan, covering the eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 save for ceiling limit which is
enl'llanoeﬂ to ¥ 50 lakhs, The Company makes annual rib to funds admi by trustees and managed by Life Insurance Corporation of india [LIC] for amounts
notified by LIC, The Company accounts for the net p value of its obligations for gratuity benefits based on an Independ | actuarial i on

the basis of the projected unit credit method camied out as at the Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
year In which they arise,

(c) Leave Encashment

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The company measures the expected cost of such
absences as the additional amount that it expecis to pay as a result of the unused entitiement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The company treats accumulated leave expected to be camied forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are taken to the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise and are not deferrad. The company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it
does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer
the settiement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS:

Initial recoanition
On initial recognition, all foreign curency ions are ded by applying to the foreign curency t, the rate i the
foreign cumrency on the date of the transaction.

porting y and the

Subseaquent recoanition

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are camed in terms of historical cost deneminated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported at the exchange rates that
existed when the values were determined.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period by applying the exchange rate at the reporting date. Exchange differences
on such it are recognised in the St t of Profit and Loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS:

Impairment is ascertained at each balance shest date in respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment. An impairment loss is recognized whenaver the carrying
amount of an assel exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash fiows are discountad to their present value. based on an approorniate discounting factor.

CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX:

Tax expense for the period, comprising currant tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit or loss for the period. Current tax is measured at the
amount expected to ba paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the taxation laws prevaﬂlng in the respective legislations. Defemed tax is recognised for all the timing

differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised and camied forward only to the extent there is a
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against wmdl such defen‘ad tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the uax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or sut i i by the Bal Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the Company

d tax assets, if any. Curmrent tax assats and current h:x liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to sat of the racognised
amounts and there is an intention to setile the asset and the liability on a net basis, Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied
by the same govemning taxation laws.

EARNING PER SHARE:

The earnings considered in ascertaining the company’s eamings per share comprises the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders. The number of shares
used in basic eaminas per share is weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

2.12 LEASE RENTALS:

(a) Where the company is lessee } ) y
Leases where the lessor effectively retains sub tially all the risks and benefit of ownership of assets over the lease term, are classified as operafing lease. Operaling
lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis, over the period of the lease,

(b) Where the company is the lessor: i 5
Leases in which the [ does not fer sub ially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the a.ssel are classified as operating leases. Aasats slubgsc: to
C g leases are i jed in Property, Plant and Equipment. Lease income on an op g lease is ized in the t of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs,
ate. are recognized Immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

2.13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months
or less.
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2.14 REVENUE RECOGNITION:

(a) Revenue from operation comprises sale of room nights, food and beverages and allied servicas relating to hotel operations, etc. Revenue is recognized upon rendering
of services.

(b} Int ti ized on a time proporbon basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

{c) Dividend Inc.orne is stated at gross and is recognised when right to receive payment is established by the reperting date.

(d) Incentives under State Industrial Policy is accounted as income when there is reasonable assurance that the company will comply with the relevant conditions and upon
reasonable certainty of realisation,

2.15 BORROWING COSTS:

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets for the period up fo the
oompieimn of their aoqutsmm or construction. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other
costs are charged to the stat of profit and loss as incumed.

2.16 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

A provision is recognised when the Canany has a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow of resourcas and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. P i are not di ted to their p value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the reporting date. These esti are d at each rep g date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made
when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, bul prabably will not, require an outflow of resources, Where there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases

where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.

3 SHARE CAPITAL: As:at Asat
March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022
Authorized:
40,000,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each 80,000,000 80,000,000
80,000,000 80,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up: ey
18.000.000 Equity Shares of # 2 each fully paid up 36,000 ) 38,000
36,000 : 36,000
{a) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Equity Shares No's Amount () No's Amount (¥)
At the beginning of the year 18,000,000 36,000,000 18,000,000 38,000,000
Equity shares issued during the year o = = u
Outstanding at the end of the year 18,000,000 36,000,000 18,000,000 36,000,000

QOut of 18,000,000 equity shares, 13,500,000 Equity Shares were issued as fully paid up Bonus Shares by capitalization of General Reserve on November 7, 2007,

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:
There is only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 2/- each and there is no change in the number of shares since the bonus issue in November, 2007. Each
holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per equity share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors

is subject to the app | of the shareholders in the ing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining
assets of the Company after distri of all p ial amounts, in prop to thair sh 9.
(c) Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
Indo Burma Agencies Pvt. Ltd, 7,522,360 41.79% 7,522,360 41.79%
Maurya Management Pvt. Ltd. 8,136,860 45.20% 8,136,860 45.20%
(d) Details of Equity shares held by Promoters:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

% Change b % Change
Name of the promoter No. of Shares % of holding Buiringitha yune No. of Shares % of holding Harng e Jeor
Indo Burma Agencies Pvt. Lid. 7,522,360 41.79% NIL 7,522,360 41.79% NIL
Maurya Management Pvi. Lid. 8,136,860 45.20% NIL 8,136,860 45.20% NIL
Renuka Sinha 60,000 0.33% NIL 60,000 0.33% ML
Pranaya Prakash Sinha 0.06% NIL 10,000 0.06% NIL
Richa Sinha ~ 0.00% NIL ; 360 0.00% NIL

87.39% i 15,729,580 87.39%

(&) The directors of the company are proposing a dividend of ¥ 0.3 per equity share (15%) for the financial year ended 31 March, 2023, Payment of such dividends is subject
to approval by the shareholders of the company in the ensuring annual general meeting and would result in a total cash outgo to the company of ¥ 54,00,000.

{f) Security Listing Status
Magadh Stock Exchange [MSE], where the company's securities were listed earlier, has been derecognized by Securities Exchange Board of India [SEBI] sffective
September 19, 2007. SEBI, vide Circular No. 38/2008 dated D ber 29, 2008 dated the companies which are listed exclusively on 'Lhosa de-recognized stock
exchanges 1o either seek listing at other stock exchanges or provide an exit option to the Shareholders as per SEBI Delisting Guideti ati after cbtaining
shareholders’ approval for the same, within a time frame, to be specified by SEBI, failing which the Company shall stand delisted through operation of taw. SEBL, in response
to informal guidance sought by the Company, vide its letter dated May 4, 2010 informed the company that in view of the Company not being listed in any other stock
exchange other than MSE, which has been derecognized, the Company may not be considered as a listed Company and accordingly advised the Company to either seek
listing at other stock exchanges or provide an exit option to its shareholders. The shareholders in its annual general meeting held on 30th September 2010 authorized the
Company 1o seek listing In any one or more gnized stock hanges in India including the stock exchange having nation wide terminals wherever applicable. The
pany has not yet initiated any action ds listing and pending such listing, the Company has been considered as an unlisted company. The Registrar of Companies,
Patna suo moto changed the status of the Company as unlisted and allotted revised CIN showing the status as unlisted. Any consequential impact of inaction and change in
status in this regard has not been ascertained and not provided for.
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&)

4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS: As st As at
March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022
Capital Reserve:
On acquisition of shares of subsidiary - from pre acquisition profit ) 2,353.27 235327
Capital Redemption Reserve:
Balance as at year end ® 744.30 744,30
Revaluation Reserve:
As per last account ) 7.605.09 8,106.20
Less: Withdrawals during the year 501.11 50111
(C) _ 7,103.98 7,605.09
General Reserve; S
As per last account 64,184.27 63,683.18
Add: Transferred from revaluation reserve — 501.11 ___Smiay
[{»}] 64,685.38 G4,184.27
Surplus In the Statement of Profit and Loss s G
As per last account 96,760.02 98,351.30
Add: Net profit/{loss) after tax transferred from the Sta of Profit and Loss 47,408.51 20872
Balance amount available for appropriation 144,168.53 98,560.02
Appropriations:
Dividend Paid during the vear™ _ 1,800.00 ~1,800.00
(E) 142,368.53 66,760.02
(A)+ (B) + (C) + (D) * (E} _ 217,255.46 171846595
“* Represents dividend of 2 0.10 per equily share on 1,80,00,000 equity shares of ¥ 2 each (5% for the financial year ended 31 March, 2022 paid during the year upon
declaration by the shareholders in the annual general meeting held on 20 September 2022
As at As at
§ LONG TERM BORROWINGS:
March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022
[Secured Loans]
Term Loans - From Banks ™ 20,242.7T1 148,602 76
Less: Current Maturities of Long Term Borowings (2,084.88) (1,460.05)
18,157.83 18.442.71
“* Nature and Maturity profile with respect to long term loans are as follows:
Repayable in Repaid till 31st R i
Term Loar from Bank Nature of security Rateof Interest  Number of Mar 2023 in N::}?ng 0,
Instalments F.Y 2022-23 ¥
HOFG Bank Limited - Auto Loan - Secured | o js secured by hypothecation of Hyundei  ©-50% 68 i u:i::g : Ww:?{ﬁ:;
Crata vehicle commencing from 05/08/2012 52469 270.01
HDFC Bank Limited - Auto Loan - Secured ~ Loan js secured by hypothecation of Toyota 7.40% 36 751.08 B13.82
Innova  Crysta vehicle commancing from (Previous Year)  ( Previous Year)
05/12/2021 180.80 57017
HDFC Bank Limited - Auto Loan - Secured Loan is secured by hypothecation of B.75% ag NIL 500.59
Volkswagen Virtus vehicle commencing from (Previous Year)  ( Previous Year)
05/04/2023 NIL NIL
ICICI Bank Limited Against hypothecation of commercial property 8.35% 180 619,87 673686
/Jungle Resort property and entire current (Previous Year)  (Previous Year)
assets of the company together with p
guarantee of Ihe Directors of the company NIL 618.87
eammancing from 10012097
As at As at
6 DEFERRED TAX (LIABILITIES) /ASSETS (NET): March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Liabllities 13,515.38 568551
Deferred Tax (Assets) (4,359.82) (10,812.70)
Deferred Tax Liabiities (net) * 915658 _ (a@21.19)
% The changes during the year are as follows:
Under section 438
: In relation to Plant, Tax Loss camy Other timing Total
Fa s Property and Equipment forward of m:‘:L:‘n%i |e1 Tas differences
Defermed tax liabilities ((assets) (net) as at beginning of the year 4,770,768 (4,964.38) (4,506.31) (227.28) (4,927.19)
Deferred tax (income} /charge 924613 = 477837 654.47 3.78 14,082
Deferred tax liabilities /(i (net) as at end of the year = 14,016.91 (786.01) (3,851.84) (223.50) 9
As at
7 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
For Gratuity 4,154.56
For Leave Encashment . 9,387.56
13,542.11
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OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES: As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Security Deposits Received 553551 499542
552551 T T
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS: As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[Secured]
Current Maturities of Long Term loan ™ 2,084,88 1,460.05
Balance In Cash Credit Account of HDFC Bank * 387.86 2,576.53
[Unsecured Loans]
Loan from Related party - Aayush Commerce Private Limited * 3208
435861
= Cash Cradit is secured against hypethecation of all Fixed Assets and is guaranteed by the managing director of the Company
* The term loan is from Aaysush Commerce Pt Ltd and is unsecured, repayable on demand and does not carry any interest.
TRADE PAYABLES: As at As at
March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022
Total cutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises '™ 2,922 96 2,927.02
Total ot ding dues of creditors other than of micro and small enterprises 4 : 35,062.86
108 g g ) 3622581 __ 37,989.88
Micro and Small Enterprises
On the basis of information sought and received by the company, no outstanding dues are payable to the suppliers or service providers, who are covered under Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Disclosures as required under Section 22 of the said act in relation to amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises:
(i) Principal amounts and interest remaining unpatd
a,) Principal amounts remaining unpaid S -
b.} Unpaid interest due on the above principal amount 5 E
Total - =
(i) Amounts of interest paid along with amounts of payment made beyond the due date
a.) Principal amounts paid beyond the due date J =
b} paid on principal its paid beyond the due date - 5
Total . .
{iii} Interest due and payable for the period
a.) On principal amounts paid during the year = 2
b.) On principal amounts remaining unpaid e =
Total = ¥
(iv) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid = =
{v) A of further i due and payable in the ding year, until such date when
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 =
The following table represent ageing of Trade payables as on March 31, 2023;
F Unbilled amou Not due < 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years Total
MSME 69.54 - 2,853.42 - - - 292296
Others 8,687 .55 - 24,363.20 241.82 10.27 = 33,202,856
Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - - -
Disputed dues-Other - - = P 5 a =
Total B.757.09 - 27.216.62 24183 10.27 - 36,225.81
The following table represent ageing of Trade payables as on March 31, 2022;
Particulars Unbilled amount Not due < 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years Total
MSME 87 61 - 2.839.41 - - - 2,927.02
Others 9.215.16 - 23.728.50 67841 671.02 771,78 35,062.86
Disputed dues-MSME - - = = = =
Disputed dues-Other - - = > b =
Total 9,302.76 - 26,565.92 678.41 671.02 771.78 37,989.88
As at As at
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES: March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022
Customers at Credit 1743977 21,315.81
‘Withholding and Other Taxes Payables 9,909.68 4,458.00
Capital Payables 8,067.16 11,083.89
Statutory Dues 1,048.94 B834.85
Salary, Bonus and Cther Payables 11,850.13 5,362.69
Other Payables - amount collected on behalf of employees 955.26 1.846.16
Unclaimed Dividend ' 88.52 45.68
Interest accrued but not due 7910
4543850
"'* The Company has issued bank drafts aggregating toas ¥ 88.51 (Previous Year ¥ 45.68) dividend pay o s that have not been presented for
payment. The validity of such bank drafts have expired. Liability in respect of the same has been jered by the pany at the balance sheet date pending the

return/canceliation of the said bank drafts.
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SHORT TERM PROVISIONS:

For Leave Encashment

For Gratuity

For Taxation

Tax Deposition as Per Contra

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Gross Block
Land - Freehoid
Land - Leasehold
L ¥

Ll o !

Building
Plant and Machinery
Equipments
Computers
Furniture and Fixures
Vehicles

Previous Year

Accumulated Depreciation
Land - Leasehold
Leasehold Building (including improvements)
Plant and Machinery
Equipments
Computers
Furniture and Fixtures
Vehicles

Previous Year

Net Block

Land - Freshold
Land -Leasehold
L

&l Blagiledi di ek

q | g impro )
Plant and Machinery
Equipments
Computers

Furniture and Fixiures
Vehicles

Frevious Year

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Gross Block
Computer Software
Previous Year

Amortization
Computer Software
Previous Year

Net Block
Computer Software
Previous Year

Note:

As at
March 31. 2022
600.74
22.76
2,671.94
(2,871.94)
623.50
As at : salel As at
March 31, 2022 Additions/ Charge ., @ ments  March 31, 2023
8,124.64 2 = 8,124.64
36.50 36,347.60 - 36,384.10
146,503.62 324.67 : 146,828.29
89,674.13 1,044.08 849,39 89,868.82
53,071.50 7.252 47 15.18 60,308.79
7.696.23 1,687 54 41.53 9,342.24
56,332.49 337.45 32,00 56,637.85
1918220 217856 119197 2016879
4917237 2,130.16 427,663.52
11,071.50 2,977.18 280,621.29
: 670.15 - 670.15
54,470.43 4,086.67 - 58,657.10
46,155.63 5,544.97 537,57 51,163.03
48,661.51 311673 15,18 49,763.06
6,738.26 943.78 4153 7,640.51
31.22
18 1} & 1,181.97
22086085 1663807 1,817.47
208,636.75 15.201 28 2.977.18
As at
March 31, 2022
8,124.64 8,124.64
36.50 35713.95
92,033.19 88,271,19
43 518,50 38,705.79
6,409.99 10,545.73
957.97 1,701.73
393362 3,106.32
4746.05 581672
_ 169,760.46 19198807
163,890.22 159.760.45
As at . Salel Asat
March 31, 2022 AUMoNs/Charae  p i ctments  March 31, 2023
4,058.51 - 5 4,058.51
4,058.51 - - 4.058.51
3,968.27 90.24 - 4,058.51
367753 290.73 : 3.968.27
38098 9025

(i) Addition to leasehold land represents stamp duty and registration fees paid during the year upon renewal of lease deed for a further period of 49 years and depreciated

over the period of the lease.
(i) The company does not have intangible assets under development.

APITAL WORK. ROGRESS As at As at

e o it March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Office Building under construction _ 4,169.68 175.00

4,169.68 175.00

Capital Work-in ss (C A Schedule as at March 31, 2023:

Particulars < 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years Total

{i} Office Building under construction 4,189,668 - - - 4,169.68
ii) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - =
Total 4,169.68 - - - 4,169.68
Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) Completion Schedule as at March 31, 2023:

Particulars < 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3years Total

(i) Office Building under construction - - - 4,169.68 4,169.68
(i) Projects temporanly suspended = - - = -
Total - - - 4,169.68 4,169.68

- 81~
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16 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS:

7

18

19

20

21

Leng Term Investments [At Cost]
Other than Trade Investments

In Unquoted Equity Shares - fully paid up
Kalyanpur Bullding Materials Private Limited
Differential Technologies Limited

Less: Provision for diminution in the value of long term investments

Apgregate Cost of unquoted investments

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES:
[Unsecured - Considered Good]

Capital Advance

Prepaid Expenses

Inter Corporate Loans ™

Tax Depositions

Provision for Taxation as Per Contra

(FY

Face Value

10
710

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Number of Shares Amount ¥ Number of Shares Amount 2

1,800 1280 1,800 _12.80
200,000  2,000.00 200,000 2,000.00
2,012,80 2,012.80
2,000.00 . 2,000.00
— 12,80 n— O

12.80 12.80

As at Asat

March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022
2,687.00 1,23261

= 506.15

84,400.00 50,600.00

10,839 82 7,074.04

___(883.68) (2,871.94)

97,043.14 = 56,540.88

The Company granted long term inter-corporate loans to Vivid Colors Private Limited [VCPL) of ¥ 50,800.00 in the FY 2018-20 carrying interest of 7% per annum to

enable VCPL for sanﬂnl'm part of the loan availed by it against pledge of the shares of the Company by the shareholders holding 86.63 % capital in the Company. In addition,
further loans agaregating to ¥ 33,800.00 was granted in the FY 2022-23 camying interast rate of 7.60%.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Secured, Considered Good
Security Deposits

CURRENT INVESTMENTS:

Lower of cost and Market Value

In Mutual Fund Units - Unguoted
LIC MF Saving Fund - Regular Plan
Aditya Birla Sunlife Money Manager Fund - Growth Direct
‘5Bl Savings Fund
Aditya Birla Sun Life Saving Growth Fund
Aditya Birla Sunlife Low Duration Fund
Aditya Birla Sunlife Equity Savings Fund-Growth
Bandhan Crisil IBX GILT June 2027 Index Fund
Bandhan Ultra Short Term Fund
Bandhan Low Duration Fund
ICICI Prudential Equity Saving Fund

Aggregate Cost of unguoted investmenis
Market Value of Mutual funds based on NAY

INVENTORIES:

[At lower of cost and net realizable value]
Crockery, Cutiery, Linen, Uniform, etc.
Provisions

Stores

TRADE RECEIVABLES:

Debts Due - Unsacurad

Face Value

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022
399550 389058
— 3985.59 — 389058

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Number of Shares Amount ¥ Number of Shares Amount ¥

- - 154,419 4,998.75
- - 68,600 19,982.00
- - 568,089 20,099.46
- 506.95 1,446 506.95
7,239 3,999.80 - 5
230,403 3,099.80 - :
465,882 4,999.75 = -
775,549 9,999.50 = ;
152,862 4,999.75 - :
289 - __5.00 : =
2851055 45605.16
28,510.55 45,605.16
28,854.67 46,353.99
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,541.73 2,332.01
1,983.50 1.548.78
112639
465162
As at

March 31, 2023

Considered Good 13,634.09 15,122.53
Considerad Doubtful 888.07 803.07
14,522.16 16,025.60
Less: Provision For Doubtful Debts 888.07 903.07
; 13,634.09 1512253
The following table represent ageing of Trade receivables as on March 31, 2023:
Particulars Not due < 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years Total
Lnds 4 Trade Receivabi
-Considered good - 12,545.30 18.17 508.47 549.75 12.40 13.634.09
-Considered doubtful - - - - - 888.07 888.07
Disputed Trade Receivabl
-Considered good - - - = = 2
-Considerad doubtful - - - = = = =
Unbilled dues - - - - 3 - 3
Total - 12,545.30 1817 508.47 548.75 900.47 14,522.16
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The following table represent ageing of Trade receivables as on March 31, 2022;

(&

Particulars Not due < 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > Jyears Total
Und Trade R
-Considered good - 13,282.58 258.74 319.85 947.93 313.42 15,122.53
-Considered doubtiul - - - - - 903.07 903.07
Di Trade Receivabl
-Considered good - = = - = = 2
-Considered doubtful - - - - - - -
Unbilled dues - - - - - - .
Total - 13,282.59 258.74 319.85 947.93 1,216.48 16,025.60
22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES: At at Aot
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand 2,487.80 1,335.80
Cheques, drafts on hand - 3,564.06
Balance with banks
in current accounts 13,992.58 13,746.92
in fixed deposit accounts 9,536.35 1,887.71
26,016.73 20,544 49
Other Bank Balances
in unpaid dividend accounts (includes drafts on hand) 4587
__ 20,590.45_
23 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES: AR at
March 31, 2022
[Unsecured - Considered Good]
Advances for supply of goods and rendering of services 2,646.73 502624
Advances to employees 139.23 386.22
Balances with Revenue Authorities 2,317.26 3.,165.53
VAT Refundable ** - 2,084.59
Amount Recaivable 125.00 150.00
interest Receivable (incl. interest accrued but not due) = -
- on inter corporate deposit 12,026.80 7.534.07
- on other deposit 25.64 823.75
Prepaid Expenses . 359090 249948
2087156 2136388

* VAT Refundable represents balance refund due against ¥ 2,773.94 deposited by the Company during the financial year 2010-11 against the total penalty of ¥ 3,505 44
levied by the sales tax authorities for incorrect use of C forms pertaining to the financial years 1998-00 to financial year 2010-11. The Company has filed an appeal befare
the Commercial Tax Tribunal against the levy of demand including penalty. During the year Commercial Tax Tribunal has transferred the case to the Circle Office o review
the case again. The matier was decided in favour of the Company wherein the authorities upheld the levy of penalty of 2 689,36 and the balance amount was refunded to

the Company during the year,

24 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS : FY 2022-23
Sale of Products:
Food and Baverages 299,424 85
Sale of Services:
Rooms 152,542.95
Income from Safari 10,926.41
License Fee 15,549.42
Other Services 1591410
— 495,357.T3

FY 2021-22

159,158.42

110,037.71
6,314.92
13.649.08
11,818.32

_ 300,978.46

8 Eoreign Exchange Eamings NIL [Previous year NIL] includes indirect foreign exchange eamings during the year through credit cards and travel agencies and as certified

by the management and not verified by the auditors

25 OTHER INCOME: FY 2022-23
Interest Income:
on fixed deposit with banks [gross] 175.44
on other loan and advances 449273
on others -
on income tax refund 257.256
Profit on Sale of Current investments 2,134.49
Provisions/Liabilities Written Back 1,183.83
Bad Debts Recovery 15.00
Profit on Sale of Plant, Property and Equipment 42.37
Miscellaneous 5331.75
133286
26 COST OF FOOD AND BEVERAGES CONSUMED: FY 2022-23
c ion of Provisions, Beverages and Smokes:™*
Opening Stock 78,343.09
Add: Purchases during the year __5T7,308.79
135,651.87
Less: Closing Stock 1,983.50
133,668.37

4 \/alue of Imports calculated on CIF basis in respect of provision, stores, wines etc. - Nil [Previous year - 2 Nil].

-B3-

FY 2021-22

215.40
357448
193.13
100.71
1,490,268

12712
_1,83284
7,533.74

FY 2021-22

1,549.71
78,708,58
80,258.29
_1,548.78

> 78,709.51
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27 EMPLOYEES BENEFITS EXPENSE : FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Salaries, Wages, Bonus, Commission elc, 129,687.26 8721327
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 5,447.86 5,229.51
Gratuity 2,704.18 914,78
Stalf Welfare 89697 1,102.77

_ 104,450.33

28 FINANCE COSTS: FY 2021-22
Interest Expense ™ 3428.99
Bank Charges 61253

404252
** Interest expenses includes 7 588.27 [Previous year 2 1.18] being interest levied in course of GST Annual Audit for three financial years.

29 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION: FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 16,634.09 15,201.28
Amortization of Intangible Assets %024 2

~ 16,724.33 __15.40;

30 OTHER EXPENSES: FY 2022.23 FY 2021-22
Electricity 22,744.60 15,621.23
Fuel 8,006.22 4,240.70
Gas 8,835.83 6,071.96
Rates, Taxes and Insurance 5,828.04 460681
Upkeep and Service Cost 15,824.39 10,026.27
Renewals and Replacements of Crockery, Cutlery, Linen and Uniform 7.750.52 4,825.85
Safari Service Cost 3,250.54 2.851.53
Advertisemant and Sales Promotion 1,334.51 370.48
Repair and Maintenance - Building 7,564.39 §.082.04
Repair and Maintenance - Plant and Machinery 13,688.63 10.216.14
Repair and Maintenance - Others 11,026.08 9.180.36
Travelling and Conveyance 12,652.78 5.266.83
Legal and Professional Charges > 7,910.22 588378
Rent 5,062.28 3,230.40
Printing and Stationery 1,214.64 765,38
Gommunication 664.84 B55.01
Running and Maintenance - \iehicles 3,987.04 293227
Directors' Sitting Fees 50.00 80.00
Debit Balances \Written Off 2,970.57 18.92
Loss on Sale of Plant, Property and Equi IAssets P 312,69 -
Bad debts 266.61 -
Loans and Doubtful Advances Written Off . 340.00
Interest Receivables Written Off - 321870
Penalties & Fines 75.70 699.96
Commission and Brokerage 6,208.92 4,351.11
Miscellaneous Expenses 6,423.98 3,531.14

isa,'m 02 107,927.87

31 TAX EXPENSES: FY 202223 Fy 2021-22
Current Tax 883.68 =
Deferred Tax 14,082.74 (1,595.46)
Income Tax Expense/(income) Relating to Earlier Years e R S _ (73330)

(2,328.76)
32 EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE:

Earning per share is calculated in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 - "Eamings Per Share - (AS 20)", notified by the Company’s (Accounting Standards) Rules,

Fy 202223 FY 2021-22
Calculation of Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of 7 2 each
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 18,000,000 18,000,000
Number of shares at the and of the year 18,000,000 18,000,000
Weighted average 18,000,000 18,000,000
Net Profit After Tax, Avai for Equity Shar 47,409 209
Basic and Diluted Eaming Per Share in ¥ 263 0.12
33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS: FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
(&) The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 13,900.68 Nil
provided far
(b} Contingent Liabilities in relation to tax and other matters
(i) Disputed tax demands relating to income tax 3,904.16 28,701.10
{ii} Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts in respect of legal cases filed - 1,600.00

I akhla inf "

The management believes that the claims made are unlenabla and is contesting them. However, the management does not believe, based on ir
the ot of the d d: gati will have effect on the company's financial condition, though the outcomes could be mmrlal to the company's

operating results for any paricular period, depending, in part. upon operating resuits for such period.
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34 LEASES:

Disclosures in respect of operating lease under Accounting Standard — 19 “Leases™ notified by the Company’s (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021,

(a) General description of the company's operating lease / license arrangements for the assets qiven:-
The Company enters into operating license /lease arrangements with a view of eaming income, All the areas on lease / licanse are cancellable / terminable by serving
are

requisite notice period and entitied to secure peaceful and vacant possession upan the expiry of the lease / license period though the amrang on
mutually acceptable terms.

(b) General description of the company's operating lease / license arrangements for the assets taken -
The Company enters into operating lease pri y for the C 1y's land of Hotel Maurya at Patna and Bolly Treat Exp Rest: t at Gyan
Bhawan, Patna. Some of the significant terms and conditions for the arrangements are:

(i) the lease on the expiry of the lease periad, is required to vacate the premises and deliver the vacant possession to the lessor peacefully.

{ii) the extension of tha laase period is allowed on mutually acceptable terms.

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
(c) As Lessor
(i) Lease rentals credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss 15,549.42 13,649.09
{1‘-} Lease rentals r le in non ing lease period in next one year 15,549.42 13,649.09
(iii) Lease rentals receivable in non cancellable operating lease period in next two to five years - =
(iv) Lease rentals i in non ting lease period in later than next five years - -
(d) As Lessee
(i} Lease rentals debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss 3,902.28 2,420.40
(i} Lease rentals in non L operating lease period in next one year 3,198.92 2,662.44
(?i.i} Leasa rentals innon g lease pariod in next two to five years 1,200.00 5,324.88
(iv) Lease rentals pay in non perating lease period in later than next five years 12,900.00 -
35 SEGMENT REPORTING:
The Company's only business Is hoteliering and hence discl of segment-wise information is not applicable under Accounting Standard 17 - "Segment Reporting” (AS-

17) notified by the Company's (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021. There Is no geographical segment to be reported since all the operations are undertaken in India.

36 DUES IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES NOT HEDGED BY ANY DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENT:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Receivables Nit il Nil Nil
Pavables USD 464 INR 45.94 USD 591 INR 46.84

37 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

(A) The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss which are includsd under Contributions fo Provident and Other Funds:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Provident Fund (including administration charges paid) 5,045.18 4,756.00
Employses State Insurance 402.68 473.51

(B) The details of company's post retirement benefit plans for its employees including its whole time directors are given below, which is certified by the actuary and relied
upon by the auditors.

Particulars Post Retirement Gratuity (Funded)  Leave Encashment (Unfunded)
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
R iliation of ing and closing bal of the p t value of the defined benefit obligation
Obhigations at the beginning of the year 28,059.23 29477.88 9,988.30 13.417.46
Service cost 1,768.62 1814.79 1,688.13 1619.88
Plan amendment cost / past service cost = = 5 2
Interest cost 176771 624.58 T74.73
Actuarial (gain)fioss 87222 (3.189.18)
Benefils paid = _{1,606.49} {2,824.80)
Obligations at the end of the year 11,566.75 9,988.30
Change in Plan Assets
Plans assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value 23,881.92 26,215.35 - -
Actual return on plan assets - - - -
Expected retum on plan assets 1.619.48 181871 - -
Contributions 2.000.00 - 1,606.49 2,624.60
Actuarial {gain)loss 154.92 (220.30) - -
Benefits paid _ (1,779.30) (3.931.84)  (1,606.49) (2,624.60)
Plans assets at the end of the year, at fair value 23,881.92 = L3
Reconciliation of Present Value of the Obligation and the Fair Value of the Plan Assets
Present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the year 30,757.51 2805923 11.568.75 9.988.30
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year (25.877.02) (23,881.92) e e e
{Assets) / Liability recognized in the balance sheet N 4,880.49 417731 _ 11,566.75 ,988.30
Particulars Post Retirement Gratuity (Funded)  Leave Encashment (Unfunded)
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Cost For the Year
Current service cost 1,768.62 181479 1.688.13 1.619.88
Plan amendment cost / Past service cost - = % =
Intarest cost 1.854.69 1.767.71 624.58 T74.73
Expected return on plan assets 11.619.48) (1,818.71) = -
Actuarial (gain)/loss __700.36 _ (849.02) L (3,199.18)
Net cost for the year 2,704.18 914.78 o \soas5T)

-85~
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38

Reconciliation of Liability Recognized in the Balance Sheet

Opening net (liability) / assets (4,177.31) (3,262.53) (2.988.30) {13.417.48)
Ein*”? recognized (2,704.18) (914.78) 13.184.93) 804.57
Gontribution by the Company __2,000.00 e 160648 60
(Liability) / assets recognized in the balance sheet _ (4,881.49) (4,177.31) (11,566.75) 3,30}
Assumptions

Interest rate 7.10% 6.80% 7.10% 6.80%
Estimated rate of return on plan assets 7.01% 6.75% - -

Rate of salary increases 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take of inflati iority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and

demand factors in the employment market. The above information has been certified by the actuary an;:l has been relied upon by the Auditors.

The Company made annual contributions to the LIC of an amount advised by the LIC. The Company was not informed by LIC of the investments made by the LIC or the
break-down of plan assets by investment type.

Summary of the Post Retirement Gratuity (Funded) plan is as foliow:

Fund balance 31/03/23 31/03/22 31/03/21 30/03/20 31/03118
Defined benefit obligation at end of the period {30,757.51) {26,461.79) (28,105.59) (27 549.95) (23,899.09)
Plan Assets at end of the period 25,877.02 23,881.92 26,215.35 2352255 2255117
Funded Status (assat) / liability {4,881.49) (2,579.87) {1,880.24) (4,027.40) (1,347.92)
(Asset) / Liability recognised in Balance Sheet (4,881.49) (2,579.87) (1,890.24) (4,027 .40) (1,347.82)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities {1.426.98) 281.30 2.84 (750,10) {1,095.51)
Experience adjustments on plan assets 154,82 {220.30) (233.33) (393.89) (444.38)
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) due to change on assumptions 538.47 701.48 1,033,581 (174.96) (736.83)
Summary of the Leave Encashment Scheme (Unfunded) is as follow:

Particulars 31/03/23 31/03122 3103121 30/03/20 31/0318
Defined benefit obligation at end of the period {11,568.75) (9,888.30) (13,417 48) (13,270.31) (9,330.81)
Plan Assets at end of the period = - - = =
(Asset) / Liability recognised in Balance Sheet {11,568.75) (9,988.30) {13,417.46) {13,270.31) (9,330.81)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (1,102.87) 2,918.48 1,250.13 (3,604.48) (3,510.85)
Experience adjustments on plan assets - - - - =
Actuarial Gain/{Loss) due to change on assumptions 230.65 280.72 583.50 {113.50) 12.03

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

{a) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any p ing has been initiated or di inst the Company for holding any Banami property

(b) The Company has not advanced any loans or advances in the nature of loans to specified persons viz, promoters, directors, KMPs, related parties which are repayable
on demand or where the agreement does not specify any terms or period of repayment.

(c) The Company has utilised funds raised borrowings from banks for the specific purposes for which they were issueditaken. The Company did not issue any securities
during the year

(d) The Company has not been as a wilful defaulter by any lender who has powers o declare a company as a wilful defaulter at any time during the financial year
or after the end of reporting period but before the date when financial statements are approved.

{g) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Imermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermediary shall:

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, sacurity or the like to or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficianes

() The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foraign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise} that the Company shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in ather persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(g) There are no fransactions and / or balance outstanding with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(h) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts but has been surmendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
ite under the | Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(i} The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

() The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number
of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(k) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be reqi i with the Reqi of C es (ROC) beyond the statutory period.

(1} Quarterly retum/statement of cument assets filed by the company with bank are in agreement with the books of accounts.

(m) During the year no Scheme of Arrangement has been formulated by the Company/pending with competent authority.
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39 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

41

nds unless otherwise stated]

The disclosure of related party relationships and transactions with the related parties are given as under-

A. Related Party Relationships:

Description of Party

Mr. Aditya Prakash Sinha
Mr. Shashi Bhushan Prasad
Mr. Ajit Kumar

Mr. Siddharth Prakash Sinha
Ms Ratika Sinha

Mr Sanjay Ramchandran

Mr. Banshidhar Singh

Mr. Anant Prakash Sinha
Ms. Richa Sinha

Differential Technologles Limited

Jenson & Michelson (India) Ltd, (under Liquidation)
Jenson & Nicholson Paints Pyt Ltd. {under Liquidation)
Kampilya Builders Private Limited (under Liquidation)

Hind Marketing Gorpn Pvt. Lid.
Maurya Management Pvt. Ltd.
Indo Burma Agencies Pvt. Ltd,

; Studio C lting Pt Lid
Ayush Commerce Private Limited
Natureunion Travels LLP

Relationship

Managing Director - Key Management Personnel

Non Executive Director - Key Management Personnel
Non Executive Director - Key Management Personne!
Non Executive Director - Key Management Parsonnel
Director - Key Management Personnel

Non Executive Director - Key Management Personnel
Whale-time Director - Key Management Personnel (w.e.f October 01, 2022)
Employee - Relative of Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Employes - Relative of Key Management Personnal (KMP)

Enterprise Under Common Control
Enterprise Under Common Control
Enterprise Under Common Control
Enterprise Under Common Control
Enterprise Under Common Control
Enterprise Under Common Control
Enterprise Under Comman Control
Enterprise Under Common Control
Enterprise Under Common Control
Enterprise Under Common Control

B. Transactions during the period with the Related Parties are as under:

Transaction

Loans and Doubtful Advances Written Off

Inter corporate deposit repaid
Website maintenance charges
KMPs' Remuneration

KMPs' Remuneration

KMPs' Remuneration
Reimbursement of expenses paid
Director Sitting Fees

Director Sitting Fees

Relative of KMPs' Remuneration
Relative of KMPs' Remunaration
Payment of Dividend

Payment of Dividend

C. Closing Balances at the year end:
Name of party
Foodscapes Studio Consulting Pvt Lid

Ayush Commerce Private Limited
Ms. Ratika Sinha

Name of the Party

Kampilya Builders Private Limited
{under Liauidation)

Ayush Commerce Private Limited
Foodscapes Studio Consulting Pyt Ltd
Mr. Aditya Prakash Sinha

Mr Bansidhar Singh ( w.e.f 01.10.2022)
Ms Ratika Sinha

Ms Ratika Sinha

Mr. Shashi Bhushan Prasad

Mr. Ajit Kumar

Mr. Anant P. Sinha

Ms. Richa Sinha

Indo Burma Agencies Pvt. Lid,
Maurya Management Pvt, Ltd.

&)

D. Balance of Investment in share capital at the year end:

Name of party

Differential Technologies Limited

As at March 31, 2023

2,000.00

Ralationship FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Enterprise Under Common Control - 188,582.56
Enterprise Under Common Control = 100.00
Enterprise Under Common Control 480.00 292.05
Managing Dirsctor 6,952.13 6,952.13
Whole-time Director 1,430.80 -
Director 4,128.00 4,128.00
Director . 869.56
Non Executive Director 20.00 30.00
Non Executive Director 30.00 50.00
Employee - Relative of KMP 7,408.00 T,408.00
Employse - Relative of KMP 2,833.20 2,83320
Enterprise Under Common Contrel 752.24 752.24
Enterprise Under Common Control 81389 81369
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

: T s 280,00 T 2570

" 322.00 - 322.00

- 1,551.86 - 668,80

As at March 31, 2022

2,000.00

DETAILS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE AND GUARANTEES GIVEN COVERED UNDER SECTION 186(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

a. In respect of investments made - refer Note 16 { Non - Current Investment) and Nete 19 (Curent Investment)
b. In respect of loans and guarantees given - details are given here below:

Name of the Company

Vivid Colours Private Limited '™

Purpose

‘Working capital loan

As at

March 31, 2023

84.400.00

FOLLOWING DISCLOSURES ARE NOT APPLICABLE FOR CONSOLIDATED FINACIAL STATEMENTS

(1} Accounting ratios
(i) Tittle deeds of immovable property

.

As at
March 31, 2022

50,800.00
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42 ENTITY CONSIDERED IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Name of the Subsidiary
Swvasara Resports Private Limited

Country of Incorporation

India 100.00%

&

Proportion of ownership interest ac at March 31 2023

42 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO PARA 2 OF GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Name of the entity in the Group Net Assets i.e. total assets minus total liabilities Share in profit
As a %age of
: As a %age of
consolidated net  Amount Amount
S consolidated profit
Parent - Bihar Hotels Limited 95.93% 242,959 11 90.13% 42,730.26
Subsidiary - Svasara Resorts Private Limited 4.07% 10.295.38 9.88% 4,675.26
Total 100.00% 25325546 100.00% 47,408.51
43 All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupess upto two as per the requi its of Schedule
Ili, unless otherwise stated,
44 PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES:

The company has reclassified previous year figures to conform to this year's classification.

For Kishor & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number - 0256020
L

,hll'ya P.gr:_/f‘

GA.Rahul Kishor Singh

Propristor Managing Director
[Membership No. 534043] [DIN; DO089558]
Place: Paina

Date:22nd August 2023,

Far and on behalf of the Board

SN RN et o,

Shashi Bhushan Prasad
Director
DIN 03556446]



Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Particulars Details
SI. No. 1
Name of the subsidiary Svasara Resorts Private Limited

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, | Same as that of holding Company
if different from the holding company’s
reporting period

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the | Not Applicable
last date of the relevant Financial year in the
case of foreign subsidiaries

Share capital Rs. 2,00,00,000/-

Reserves & surplus Rs. 1,02,95,376/-

Total assets Rs. 7,76,47,395/-

Total Liabilities Rs. 7,76,47,395/-

Investments Rs. 5,11,949/-

Turnover Rs. 4,61,59,473/-

Profit before taxation Rs. 56,64,597/-

Provision for taxation Rs. 8,83,678/- (Current Tax)
Rs. 1,05,664/- (Deferred Tax)

Profit after taxation Rs. 46,75,255/-

Proposed Dividend Nil

Extent of shareholding (In percentage) 100.00

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations — Not Applicable
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year — Not Applicable

(Aditya Prakash Sinha) (Shashi Bhushan Pras
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00089558 DIN: 03596446

-89-



Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures Name 1 [ Name 2 | Name 3
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date
2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture _\

was associated or Acquired
3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end

No.
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture
Extend of Holding (In percentage)

4. Description of how there is significant
influence Not Applicable

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not |
consolidated

6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per
latest audited Balance Sheet

7. Profit/Loss for the year

B Considered in Consolidation ‘/
i. Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. — Not Applicable
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. — Not
Applicable

T DO\ i
%j;ya Prakash Sinha) (Shashi Bhushan BHSag " Retedl,

Managing Director Director
DIN: 00089558 DIN: 03596446

Date: 22.08.2023
Place: Patna
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